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~ Non-executive Directors:

Ma Kwok Hung, Warren
Chow Siu Ngor

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund

Chan Chi Yuen

Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund (Chairman)
Chan Chi Yuen

Chow Siu Ngor

Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Chan Chi Yuen (Chairman)

Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund

Chow Siu Ngor

Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT
Chan Chun Lam

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Chun Lam

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

SOLICITORS

Hong Kong:

Baker & McKenzie
14/F., Hutchison House
10 Harcourt Road
Central, Hong Kong

Richards Butler

20/F., Alexandra House
16-20 Chater Road
Hong Kong
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Bermuda:
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2901 One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong
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Ting Ho Kwan & Chan
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9/F., Tung Ning Building
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Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG
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183 Queen’s Road Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR
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Rosebank Centre
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BRANCH REGISTRAR IN HONG KONG
Tricor Secretaries Limited

26/F., Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHE &5
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The board of directors (the “Board”) hereby presents the
annual results of Premium Land Limited (the “Company”) and

subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) for the financial year
} ,#j 31 March 2008.

04

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group recorded
a turnover of HK$655,960,000 (2007: HK$361,961,000),
mainly generated from increase of securities trading and
investment. Loss attributable to shareholders amounted to
HK$99,379,000 (2007: HK$22,993,000). Loss per share
was 19.0 HK cents (2007: 5.7 HK cents). Included in the
reported loss was an impairment recognized in relation to
loss on receivables of HK$27,420,000 (2007: HK$9,289,000)
and share option expenses of HK$2,726,000 (2007:
HK$7,658,000).

As at 31 March 2008, the total assets and net assets of the
Group were HK$284,182,000 (2007: HK$368,715,000) and
HK$208,615,000 (2007: HK$298,781,000) respectively.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in property development and
sales, securities trading and investment, trading of building
materials and provision of renovations services.

During the vyear, the Group has gone through a period of
transition. It has been reviewing certain areas of operations
and procuring potential property development projects in the
PRC with a view to laying a solid foundation for the Group's
business development and earnings in the long run.

In 2007, the Group undertook its first property development
project in Huairou District, Beijing, the PRC. The project
comprises two stages where the first level of property
development involving demolition of shabby houses and
installation of land infrastructures has been underway. It is
anticipated that the second level of property development will
commence in 2009 (subject to acquisition of land use rights),
which will involve construction of residential properties with
compatibility of commercial services with a total gross floor
area ("GFA") of approximately 63,000 sqm. Huairou District is
a famous tourists spot within a 40-minute travel distance to
the downtown of Beijing city, and the Group anticipates that
under continuous urbanization, city planning and transport
optimization, Huairou District will become an indispensable
part of the Beijing city in the near future.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

In the same year, the Group announced its acquisition of two
PRC property development companies currently engaged in
the development of an existing residential property project
in Yubei District, Chongging, the PRC. The site is located at
a prime location within a short distance from Chongging
Jiangbei International Airport and the railway station. It has a
land parcel of approximately 7,000 sgm, on which a GFA of
approximately 35,000 sgm can be built for mainly residential
purpose.

The management is cognizant of the impact of the
continuously changing and increasingly stringent PRC
government policies on real estate market especially in year
2008, and has therefore taken a very prudent approach in
expanding its business. Subsequent to the financial year, the
Group has decided not to exercise the call option, which
was acquired in June 2007 and would entitle it to acquire a
6-storey shopping mall in Shanghai for a total consideration
of RMB555,000,000, after taking into account, amongst
other things, weak property market sentiment in Shanghai
and uncertainties on the part of the relevant vendor to fulfill
certain material conditions precedent under the call option,
and accordingly such option has expired in June 2008. In
addition, in April 2008, the Group announced its termination
of the acquisition of a Beijing villa project on the grounds,
amongst other things, that there remains a condition under
the relevant agreement unfulfilled by the vendor and that the
subject matter under the agreement was frustrated. The Group
has also commenced legal proceedings against recovery
of a deposit from the corresponding vendor. However, the
justifiable termination of these acquisitions has no adverse
material impact on the Group as a whole.

SEGMENT RESULTS

For securities trading and investment, segment turnover
increased significantly to HK$647,550,000 (2007:
HK$351,937,000). Segment loss amounted to HK$28,503,000
(2007: profit of HK$11,604,000). The loss was mainly due to
the underperformed local stock market during the second half
of the year under review.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
 EEEHBRRS
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SEGMENT RESULTS (continued)

. ading of building materials and renovation services,
ent turnover decreased by 16% to HK$8,410,000 (2007:

s

HK$9,986,000), which was due to the poorer local property
market. Segment loss amounted to HK$3,980,000 (2007:
profit of HK$54,000). The loss was mainly due to higher
operating cost which was primarily resulted from higher staff
cost and appreciation of Renminbi.

For property development and sales, there was no segment
turnover (2007: HK$22,000) and segment loss amounted
to HK$19,996,000 (2007: HK$10,949,000). The loss was
mainly due to an impairment recognized in relation to loss on
receivables of HK$15,412,000 (2007: HK$10,249,000).

PROSPECT

During the year, the PRC government continued to carry out a
series of austerity measures to regulate the economic growth,
Renminbi appreciation and real estate market. The Group is of
the view that the stepping up of the austerity measures in the
PRC has cast uncertainties in the economic and real estate
market development, and thus the Group remains cautious
and takes prudent approach in making heavy investments
in new property projects in the short run as it is still likely
that government policies against the continual trend of over-
heating economy will remain in place in short term. However,
the Group is convinced that in long term, the austerity
measures will successfully deter speculative activities and curb
mounting inflation, which will undoubtedly lay the foundation
for a healthier and continual development of the economy
and real estate market in the PRC.

The Group will continue endeavouring to identify potential
property development and investment projects and/or
companies holding land parcels with high potential value with
a view to strengthening its business portfolios and positioning
itself to better receive the enormous growing opportunities in
the real estate market in the PRC in the long run.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI_ s

CAPITAL INVESTMENT AND COMMITMENTS

At 31 March 2008, the Group had capital commitment of
HK$23,629,000 (2007: nil) in respect of investment costs
attributable to acquisitions of subsidiaries.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$130,905,000 (2007:
HK$177,312,000). The decrease in cash and cash equivalents
was mainly due to the deposit paid for acquisition of
subsidiaries. Bank borrowings of HK$37,205,000 at 31 March
2008 were substantially improved as compared to last year
of HK$43,815,000. The gearing ratio, being the ratio of total
bank loans and other borrowings over shareholders’ equity,
was 0.18 (2007: 0.15). The liquidity ratio of the Group, being
the ratio of current assets over current liabilities, was 290%
(2007: 506%).

Taking into account the financial resources available to the
Group, the Group has sufficient working capital to meet its
present requirements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2008, the Company had no significant
contingent liabilities (2007: nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the Company issued and allotted 20,700,000
new shares of HK$0.01 each upon exercise of share options
granted by the Company.

Save as the above, there was no change in the share capital
structure of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2008.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEET R &5

o

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES

} I !’ 28 September 2007, Sun Spread Group Limited (“Sun

08

Spread”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered

into a conditional sale and purchase agreement with Nie
Peng Fei, pursuant to which Sun Spread agreed to acquire
from Nie Peng Fei the entire issued share capital of it
EHBERELEABR AT (Beijing De Bang Fu Strategic
Consultancy Company Limited). The consideration payable
for the acquisition was RMB2,000,000 which was to be
settled in cash. Details of the acquisition are set out in the
Company's circular dated 23 October 2007. The transaction
was completed on 22 January 2008.

On 24 October 2007, Silver Wind International Limited
("Silver Wind"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional agreement (the "Acquisition
Agreement”) with Stronway Development Limited
(“Stronway Development”), pursuant to which Silver Wind
agreed to acquire from Stronway Development the entire
equity interest in Winmax Asia Investment Limited. The
aggregate consideration payable for the acquisition was
RMB433,000,000 which was to be settled in cash and two
consideration villas. Details of the acquisition are set out in
the Company's circular dated 14 December 2007. On 15
April 2008, the Company announced that the Acquisition
Agreement was terminated by Silver Wind. Further information
in respect of the termination of the Acquisition Agreement is
disclosed in the section “Litigations” below.

On 14 December 2007, Unique Gold Investments Limited
("Unigue Gold"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a conditional agreement with Zhuang Xu and
Tang Mao (together the “Sunrise Vendors”), pursuant to which
Unique Gold conditionally agreed to acquire from the Sunrise
Vendors the entire equity interest in EE/BHEHEMNES
2 7] (Chongging Sunrise Property Development Company
Limited), which was owned as to 51% by Zhuang Xu and
49% by Tang Mao (the “Sunrise Acquisition”). The total
consideration for the Sunrise Acquisition was RMB45,000,000
which was to be settled in cash. Details of the acquisition are
set out in the Company’s circular dated 8 January 2008. The
transaction has not yet been completed up to the date of this
report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSI_ s

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

On 14 December 2007, Unique Gold entered into a
conditional agreement with Zhang Xue Ping and Zhang Xue
Mei (together the “Feng Hong Ji Vendors"), pursuant to which
Unique Gold conditionally agreed to acquire from the Feng
Hong Ji Vendors the entire equity interest in E & B, E &
EMREE2AA (Chongging Feng Hong Ji Enterprise Company
Limited), which was owned as to 90% by Zhang Xue Ping
and 10% by Zhang Xue Mei (the “Feng Hong Ji Acquisition”).
The total consideration for the Feng Hong Ji Acquisition was
RMB25,000,000 which was to be settled in cash. Details of
the acquisition are set out in the Company's circular dated 8
January 2008. The transaction has not yet been completed up
to the date of this report.

Apart from the above, the Group had no material acquisition
and disposal of subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March
2008.

LITIGATIONS

a) In July 2005, the Company was notified by the Hong
Kong Companies Registry that an annual return of Gold
United International Industries Limited (“Gold United"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
filed in May 2005 (“May Annual Return”) contained
information, including information relating to members
and directors of Gold United, which are significantly
different from the original annual return that was
presented by the Group on 29 April 2005.

On 13 July 2005, the Company filed a Writ of
Summons against four persons (the “Defendants”)
seeking, amongst others, declarations by the court to
the effect that Winsky Management Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, is the beneficial
owner of 51% of the issued share capital of Gold
United. The Defendants were those persons who
purportedly filed the false information with the Hong
Kong Companies Registry and/or were identified as
members and directors in the May Annual Return and
other documents. Gold United is an investment holding
company holding an 80% direct interest in F/1E&E %
R AR A F], which is engaged in the operation of a
highway in the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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LITIGATIONS (continued)

_ The Writ of Summons was amended on 1 February
2006 and re-amended on 10 October 2006 and 12
June 2008 respectively.

As at the date of this report, the legal action is still
proceeding and there is no significant development.

b) Subsequent to the year end date on 15 April 2008,
the Company announced that Silver Wind International
Limited (“Silver Wind"), a wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company, decided to terminate the Acquisition
Agreement and, through its legal representative
has served a notice of termination to Stronway
Development Limited (“Stronway Development”) and
in order to protect the position of Silver Wind and to
recover the deposit paid to Stronway Development in
the amount of RMB20,000,000, it also commenced
legal proceeding against Stronway Development on
this matter and has filed a Writ of Summons against
Stronway Development in respect of the above claim.

Details of the above are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 April 2008. As at the date of
this report, the legal action is still proceeding and there
is no significant development.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATE RISK AND
INTEREST RATE RISK

The Group's transactions are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and Renminbi. The Group did not enter into any
foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge against exchange
rates fluctuations. Foreign exchange risk arising from the
normal course of operations is considered to be minimal and
the management will closely monitor the fluctuation in the
currency and take appropriate actions when condition arises.

In terms of the interest rate risk exposures, the Group
does not have any significant interest rate risk as both the
borrowings of the Group and the interest rates currently
remain at low levels.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

STAFF

As at 31 March 2008, the Group employed 32 employees
(2007: 24). Remuneration packages are generally structured
by reference to market terms and individual merits. Salaries
are reviewed periodically based on performance appraisal
and other relevant factors. Staff benefits plans maintained by
the Group include medical insurance, hospitalization scheme,
mandatory provident fund and share option scheme.

Employees in the PRC are remunerated according to
the prevailing market conditions in the locations of their
employments.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to shareholders, customers, suppliers, bankers and
professional advisors for their support of the Company over
the past year and to sincerely thank the staff for their ongoing
dedication and diligence.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Chi Ho
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERGREEASEEGN

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

'ﬁo Chi Ho, aged 33, joined the Board on 2 March 2007.

as over 9 years experience in corporate finance with

~ participation in activities including mergers and acquisitions,

initial public offerings and equity syndication. He is a
responsible officer under the Securities and Futures Ordinance
for type 6 regulated activity (advising on corporate finance).
He holds a Master degree in Business Administration from
The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology and a
Bachelor degree in Business Administration (Accounting &
Finance) from The University of Hong Kong.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren, aged 51, joined the Board on
24 July 2006. He has been an Executive Director and the
Company Secretary of the Company since 24 July 2006 and
15 December 2006 respectively, up to 22 May 2008. Prior
to that Mr. Ma has been an Executive Director and Company
Secretary of a Hong Kong listed company for over 7 years.
He has over 20 years of accounting experience and is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Chow Siu Ngor, aged 53, joined the Board on 30 April
2006. He is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Chow
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981
with an honors degree in Social Science. He then obtained an
honors degree in Laws from the University of Birmingham in
1987. Mr. Chow was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme
Court of Hong Kong in 1990 and has been in private practice
since then. Currently, Mr. Chow is a Partner of Arculli Fong
& Ng, Solicitors and Notaries of Hong Kong. Mr. Chow also
serves as an independent non-executive director of three other
listed companies in Hong Kong namely CCT Tech International
Limited, China Solar Energy Holdings Limited and REXCAPTIAL
Financial Holdings Limited respectively. Mr. Chow also served
as an independent non-executive director of eForce Holdings
Limited, a listed company in Hong Kong from 1 October 1999
to 3 July 2007.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund, aged 47, joined the Board
on 13 February 2006. He is a Practising Certified Public
Accountant in Hong Kong and a Chartered Accountant in
the United Kingdom. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow
member of The Association of Certified Public Accountants
and an associate member of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales.

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen, aged 42, joined the Board on 30 April
2006. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration
with honors and a Master of Science degree in Corporate
Governance and Directorship. He is a fellow member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales. Mr. Chan is Certified Public Accountant. Mr.
Chan has extensive experience in accounting, taxation, financial
management, corporate finance and corporate governance. Mr.
Chan was an independent non-executive director of Golden
Resorts Group Limited from 17 September 2004 to 28
October 2005 and is currently an executive director of A-Max
Holdings Limited, Kong Sun Holdings Limited and Prosticks
International Holdings Limited, a non-executive director of New
Times Group Holdings Limited, an independent non-executive
director of China Sciences Conservational Power Limited, Hong
Kong Health Check and Laboratory Holding Company Limited
and Superb Summit International Timber Company Limited,
companies whose shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

-y

EERSHREBASEELGIT

BYFHTES

ERBREXE 47T RZZEERF_A
TZHMNAEZESE - BAEDBSREZTAD
MBI EE o mAE BB EETAD
ARERAABFHFLARSHMAEERS
BUARERBLAEBNETEtMAee

= o

REBXRE 42 RZZTZEXFWMA
STEAMAESE - HR/AIPHEE (&
BB RO EETREEETLRPEFE LA
- BABBSTMATRERBFHFLR
SHMASERSEWARKE BB
FTermAges MaoERRESH
B REF B MBKEE ERE
REGC¥ERTARBLEELH - RAEER
—EENFENA++EBEE_SERF+A
—tHtNEHBRAESEBERARZE L
FHMITES  BARIBTERERAE
TLERERAG R BERBIZERE
RABIZHITES : MEREEZRER
REIZERITES  ARIRRENARA
A -AERRLAEEDEHIZEREBER AR
TEBRBAEBRARZEBILIERITE
L -ZERABEBBHARIMABRA
Al EMAR -

13

EiERBEMAR QT 2008 £1) | |



B
T

".4.,;

14

BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ERSHREBEASEEG N

Mr. Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin, aged 41, joined the Board
on 20 November 2007. He has over 18 years experience
i counting and finance. Mr. Tsang holds a Master of

ess Administration degree from the University of Hull
and a MSc in Electronic Commerce and Internet Computing
from the University of Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of
The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Tsang is currently the Executive
Director and Chief Financial Officer of Peace Mark (Holdings)
Limited, a listed company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chan Chun Lam, aged 36, is the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Company. Mr. Chan holds a
Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Accounting
with honors from Hong Kong Baptist University. He is a fellow
member of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has over 13 years of professional
experience in financial management and auditing.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPOII;"I"'""

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance
Report in the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2008.

Good corporate governance has always been recognized
as vital to the Group’s success and to sustain development
of the Group. We commit ourselves to a high standard of
corporate governance and have devoted considerable efforts
to identifying and formulating corporate governance practices
appropriate to the Company’s needs.

The Company has put in place corporate governance practices
to meet the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
(the "CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) as promulgated
by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”). The Group has complied with the CG Code
provisions that are considered to be relevant to the Group
save for certain deviations from the CG Code, details of which
will be explained in the relevant paragraphs in this report.
The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance
practices to ensure that these continue to meet the
requirements of the CG Code.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarized as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group's businesses, strategic
decisions and performances and is collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising its affairs. In practice, the Board takes
responsibility for decision making in all major matters of
the Company including: the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, the setting of objectives and overall strategies,
material transactions (in particular those may involve conflict
of interests), appointment of directors and other significant
financial and operational matters. The day-to-day management,
administration and operation of the Company are delegated
to the senior executives. Approval has to be obtained from
the Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by
these senior executives and the Board has the full support of
them to discharge its responsibilities.
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THE BOARD (continued)

nsibilities (continued)

directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information as well as the advice and services of the
professional advisers, as and when required, with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

Composition

The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance
of skills and experience desirable for effective leadership of
the Company and independence in decision making.

The Company has met the recommended best practice under
the CG Code for the Board to have at least one-third of its
members comprising independent non-executive directors.

The Board of the Company as at the date of this report
comprises the following directors:

Executive directors:
Mr. Ho Chi Ho

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren

Mr. Chow Siu Ngor (Member of Audit Committee & Member
of Remuneration Committee)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund (Chairman of Audit Committee
& Member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (Member of Audit Committee &
Chairman of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin (Member of Audit Committee &
Member of Remuneration Committee)

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008
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THE BOARD (continued)

Composition (continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The list of directors (by category) is also disclosed in all
corporate communications issued by the Company pursuant
to the Listing Rules from time to time.

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director of his independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The
Company considers all independent non-executive directors
to be independent in accordance with the independence
guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors
The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of directors are laid down in the Company's Bye-laws.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Code Provision A.4.2 stipulates that all directors appointed
to fill a casual vacancy should be subject to election
by shareholders at the first general meeting after their
appointment and that every director, including those appointed
for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years.

Save for Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund, none of the
independent non-executive directors is appointed for a specific
term. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company, regardless of his/her term of appointment, if any,
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years. Whereas pursuant to the company's Private Act enacted
in Bermuda, managing director of the company shall not be
subject to retirement by rotation.
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THE BOARD (continued)

%,
tinued)

} ,'intment and Succession Planning of Directors

18

Under the existing Bye-laws, new director appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after his/her appointment and
all directors including Chairman (save for Managing Director)
shall be subject to retirement by rotation once every three
years.

Though the Company has not set up a nomination committee,
the Board reviewed its own structure, size and composition
regularly to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills and
experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of
the Company.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company's needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. An external recruitment agency may be
engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process
when necessary.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Tsang Kwong
Chiu, Kevin, independent non-executive director, having been
appointed to the post of director of the Company during
the year, shall retire and being eligible, offers himself for re-
election at the 2008 annual general meeting. Mr. Wong Hoi
Kuen, Edmund, independent non-executive director, and Mr.
Chow Siu Ngor, non-executive director, shall retire by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2008
annual general meeting. The Company's circular dated 31 July
2008 contains detailed information of the directors standing
for re-election.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Training for Directors

Each newly appointed director received comprehensive
induction on the first occasion of his appointment, so as to
ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he is fully aware of
his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

The directors have access to seek professional advice on legal
and regulatory developments at the Company's expenses
whenever feel necessary.

Remuneration of Directors

The remuneration committee was set up on 20 July 2006. The
committee was responsible for reviewing the remuneration
policy and packages of the directors and senior executives and
made recommendations about their proposals to the Board
which were determined by reference to the performance
of the individuals and the Group and market practices and
conditions on the basis of retaining and motivating executives
to pursue the growth and development of the Group.

Board and Board Committee Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times
a year at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating issues, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the
Company.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, 18 Board meetings
(2 of which are regular Board meetings); 2 Audit Committee
meetings and 1 Remuneration Committee meeting were held.
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THE BOARD (continued)

and Board Committee Meetings (continued)
er of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance (continued)

The individual attendance record of each director at the
meetings of the Board, Audit Committee and Remuneration
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Committee during the year ended 31 March 2008 is set out EB& &%
below:
Attendance/Number
of Meetings held
HER
SRETRY
Audit Remuneration
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee
EEnE EExg ENRZEE" FHESS
Executive Directors HITEE
— Mr. Ho Chi Ho - [AEREE 15/18 N/A- 3 A N/A- 3
— Mr. Gao Feng - SlEEE -/18 N/AE A N/AE A
(resigned on 29 May 2007) (RZETLF
HEAZTHhBEE)
Non-executive Directors HHITEF
— Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren - BE%EE 18/18 N/ATE A N/AT3E A
— Mr. Chow Siu Ngor - B NEEE 5/18 2/2 1/1
Independent Non-executive Directors — BV IF#HiTEF
— Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund - BEEEE 9/18 2/2 1/1
— Mr. Chan Chi Yuen - FRERLE 8/18 2/2 1/1
— Mr. Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin - BESIEE
(appointed on (RZZEZE+F+—H
20 November 2007) “tHEZFT) 1/18 1/2 —/1
— Mr. Pang Haiou - BEBBLE
(retired on 20 August 2007) (RZETLF
NAZ+HEE) -/18 -/2 N/AT & A
~Mr. Zuo Guang - ZEV?‘EE
(retired on 20 August 2007) (RZETLF
NAZ+HEE) -/18 -/2 N/AT 3@ A
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THE BOARD (continued)

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting
are normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors
at least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and
committee meetings, reasonable notices are generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and
reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make
informed decisions. All directors are given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for regular Board meetings. The
Board and each director also have separate and independent
access to the senior executives whenever necessary. With the
support of the senior executives, the Chairman is responsible
for ensuring that the directors receive adequate, complete
and reliable information in a timely manner and appropriate
briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

Minutes of all Board meetings recording sufficient details
of matters considered and decisions reached are kept by
secretary of the meetings and open for inspection by the
directors.

The Company's Bye-laws contain provisions requiring directors
to abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum
at meetings for approving transactions in which such directors
or any of their associates have a material interest.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

( Cont/nued)

} I l! Company does not at present have a Chairman nor a

22

Chief Executive Officer. Nevertheless, the main duties and
respon5|b|ht|es of a Chairman and a Chief Executive Officer are
currently held by separate individuals with written guidelines
for the division of responsibilities with a view to maintain an
effective segregation of duties between the management of
the Board and the day-to-day management of the Group's
business and operations.

The Company will continue to review the effectiveness of
the Group's corporate governance structure and consider the
appointment of a Chairman of the Board and a Chief Executive
Officer if candidates with suitable leadership, knowledge, skills
and experience can be identified within or outside the Group.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established two committees, namely,
the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, for
overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs. Both
Board committees are established with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available to shareholders upon request.

All the members of each Board committee are independent
non-executive directors and non-executive directors and the
list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is
set out under “Composition” of this report.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors and one non-executive director. One
meeting was held during the year ended 31 March 2008.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Remuneration Committee (continued)

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee
include reviewing, making recommendations on and approving
the remuneration policy and structure and remuneration
packages of the executive directors and the senior executives.
The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director
or any of his/her associates will participate in deciding his/her
own remuneration, which remuneration will be determined
by reference to the performance of the individual and the
Group as well as market practice and conditions. The Human
Resources Department is responsible for collection and
administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult
the Board and the management of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director (including
one independent non-executive director who possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise). None of the members of the
Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company's existing
external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and
consider any significant or unusual items raised by the
qualified accountant, internal auditor or external auditors
before submission to the Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors
by reference to the work performed by the auditors,
their fees and terms of engagement, and make
recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

, 'ﬂCommittee (continued)
o review the adequacy and effectiveness of the
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Company's financial reporting system, internal control
system and risk management system and associated
procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year
ended 31 March 2008 to review the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, report
on the Company’s internal control and risk management
review and processes and the re-appointment of the external
auditors.

There is no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the selection, appointment, resignation
or dismissal of external auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management and
the Company’s external auditors the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing,
internal control and financial reporting process including
the review of the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the directors and the

directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The Company has not established written guidelines for
securities transactions by employees (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
price-sensitive information of the Company. Steps are being
taken to adopt the Employees Written Guidelines on no less
exacting terms than the Model Code.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other disclosures required
under the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2008.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
set out in the “Independent Auditor's Report” on page 34 of
the annual report.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not formed Nomination Committee.
According to the bye-laws of the Company, the Company may
from time to time in general meeting by ordinary resolution
elect any person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board. The Board also has the power to
appoint any person to be a Director to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board and such appointment shall be
subject to shareholders” approval in general meeting.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

remuneration paid to the external auditors of the

pany in respect of audit services and non-audit services
for the year ended 31 March 2008 amounted to HK$770,000
and HK$350,000 respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The rights of shareholders and the procedures for demanding
a poll on resolutions at shareholders’ meetings are contained
in the Company's Bye-laws. Details of such rights to demand
a poll were included in the circular to shareholders in relation
to the holding of general meetings of the Company and
explained during the proceedings of such meetings.

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board.

Separate resolutions were proposed at 2007 annual general
meeting on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual directors.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior executives
maintain regular dialogue with institutional investors
and analysts to keep them abreast of the Company's
developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to
the Company at the principal place of business in Hong Kong
for any inquiries.

INTERNAL CONTROL

To protect its assets and to ensure the accuracy and reliability
of the financial information that the Company employs in its
business or releases to the public, the Company conducts
regular reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's internal
controls. The scope of these reviews includes, among
others, finance, operations, regulation compliance and risk
management.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 6 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2008
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 37.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the principal subsidiaries of the Company at 31
March 2008 are set out in note 46 to the financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group has no investment properties at 31 March 2008
(2007: nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

20,700,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each were issued and
allotted during the year upon exercise of share options granted
by the Company.

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30 to the financial
statements
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DIRECTORS

Executive directors:

Mr. Ho Chi Ho
Mr. Gao Feng
(resigned on 29 May 2007)

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren
(re-designated from executive director to non-executive
director on 23 May 2008)

Mr. Chow Siu Ngor
(re-designated from independent non-executive director to
non-executive director on 20 November 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen
Mr. Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin
(appointed on 20 November 2007)
Mr. Pang Haiou (retired on 20 August 2007)

Mr. Zuo Guang (retired on 20 August 2007)

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 86(2), Mr. Tsang
Kwong Chiu, Kevin will retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, offers himself for re-election.

In accordance with the Company's Bye-law 87(2), Mr. Wong
Hoi Kuen, Edmund and Mr. Chow Siu Ngor will respectively
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible offer themselves for re-election.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2008, the interests of the directors and their
associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFQ"), or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:
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Share options BB R
Percentage of the
Number of share issued share capital
Name of Director Type of interest options held of the Company
ERQE S BT
EEpR = E R FEEBEREE REBSH
Ho Chi Ho Beneficial owner 5,100,000 0.95%

e ERFAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as at 31 March 2008.
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SHARE OPTION

iculars of the Company's share option scheme are set out
te 31 to the financial statements.

i
5
i

The movements in the share options granted under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 24 April 2002
(the "Scheme”) during the year ended 31 March 2008 are
shown below:

Number of options

B

RARIZBREEFS SRV HERE
BIEE3T ©

BE_ZTN\F-A=t—HLEFE &
ARAN-_FTE_FOA-_THAREER
g ([Rr8l D RE 2B EEsmT

BREHE
At Granted Exercised Lapsed At Date of Exercise
Category of 1 April during during during 31 March grant of price per Exercisable
participant 2007 the year the year the year 2008 share options share period
R-2BLE ZRENE BRE B8R CEigid
SEAEH mA-R  FARH ERfTE  FA%XX ZA=t-H RiAH TREE il
(HKS)
(B7)
Director
gz
Ho Chi Ho 1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 06/03/2007 1122 06/03/2007 -
5% 05/03/2010
- 3,600,000 - - 3,600,000 17/09/2007 1210 17/09/2007 -
16/09/2010
Other eligible participants 12,540,000 - (700,000) - 11,840,000 05/06/2006 0270 05/06/2006 -
EAERZEA 04/06/2009
32,600,000 - (20,000,000) - 12,600,000 11/10/2006 0323 11/10/2006 -
10/10/2009
Total 46,640,000 3,600,000 (20,700,000) - 29,540,000
it

The closing price of the Company's shares on 14 September
2007, being the trading date immediately before the date of
grant of the options, was HK$1.4.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBT SECURITIES

Other than as disclosed above, at no time during the year
was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 March 2008, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO shows that the following shareholders had notified the
Company of relevant interests in the share capital of the
Company:

Name of shareholder Type of interest

Number of issued
ordinary shares held
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Percentage of
the issued share
capital of the Company
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RREE R Rz A EBRREAE BREE DL
Long position
wR
Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each
BREEBEC.OETZ EERK
Mega Market Assets Limited Beneficial Owner 133,019,517 24.89%

EafBA (Note) (f17%)
Chan How Chung, Victor Held by controlled corporation 133,019,517 24.89%
PRZ 52 B EEERFA (Note) (/17%)
Note: Bt -

Mega Market Assets Limited, which directly owned 133,019,517
shares in the Company, is beneficially wholly owned by Mr. Chan How
Chung, Victor. As at 31 March 2008, Mr. Chan had a personal interest
in 3,510,000 underlying shares, representing 0.66% of the issued
share capital of the Company.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in the
issued share capital of the Company as at 31 March 2008.

Mega Market Assets Limited B 3 # A A Q&) I
9133,0195170% » Z Rl ARFRLEAERE
BEHE-R-_TBEN\E=-A=+—80 BE4HE
£3,510,000x BEAK N 2 BAREZ  (hARQ
A B BT A0.66% °
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No contracts of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the vyear, the aggregate turnover attributable to the
Group's five largest customers were less than 30% of the
Group's turnover for the year. The aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers were less than
30% of the Group's purchases for the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Board on the basis of their merit, qualifications
and competence. The emoluments of the directors of the
Company are decided by the Board, as authorised by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting, having regard
to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to directors and eligible employees, details of which
are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of
corporate governance practices. Information on the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company is set out in
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 15 to 26.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
throughout the year ended 31 March 2008.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of significant events occurring after the balance sheet
date are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tomatsu resigned as auditors of the Company
on 7 June 2006. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan were appointed
subsequently on 27 June 2006. Ting Ho Kwan & Chan retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution for re-appointment of Ting Ho Kwan & Chan as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Ho Chi Ho
Executive Director
Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TING HO KWAN & CHAN
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS (PRACTISING)

5,
} ' wor, Tung Ning Building
249-253 Des Voeux Road Central
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TO THE MEMBERS OF PREMIUM LAND LIMITED HEBXRBEMERATRE
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability) (RERZEFMAE T2 FRZF])

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of AZHAE TKEBZ LERBESHERAD
Premium Land Limited (the “"Company”) set out on pages & ([ERF)HNEITEEZF 1438 2§
37 to 143, which comprise the consolidated and Company H#®&k @ 2ER _ETEZEN\F=A=1+—H
balance sheets as at 31 March 2008, and the consolidated Y &4G&REAFTEERAGER HEZAIE
income statement, the consolidated statement of changes in  FEZHFAWGEZER SGAEZEH R LK
equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year A& REXR  UNBERESHFHEHE R
then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies —~ E E i BAMIE o

and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE EENMBBRREAREZERE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the BRAIZEEZEEEREFESHMASHE

preparation and the true and fair presentation of these {2 & B EHmEER BB QTGN 2
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial #ERERELEE M A Fith 2 51| it B 75
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of  $R3&k - WEEBERT  EHhgEERF
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements K EFMAFH 27| RRBBEHA
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility — #BE5#% - LAfE Bf SRR T 1F4& R FF sk
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal  $5ER M E M E RN E R R : FIEANER
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair WEZEEEE: RZRBERELNAEZS
presentation of financial statements that are free from material ~ F{H & o

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting

and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making

accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY ZERz2EE

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial HMZETABRERMZEBEZEZEH
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to FHEXELER @ WIKBEREQRES
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda 901§ 2 F @ EHBEMERE - BRIt
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume — 4p » B {f9 2 SR &~ a] FVEE b A & - F 1M
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person A ARE 2 WA - YHEREMALE
for the contents of this report. Except as described in the basis  Ha&AELIEZET - KR REER 2 E%E
for qualified opinion paragraph, we conducted our audit in  —EFrifish - A IRBEESHAIAE
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by 8 2 BB BT HERETEXTE- EL
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those %R Z R 8 <FEE A& - WRE L #H
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements 17%E#Z @ WA EBTHETEBRRES T
34 and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable fF&E=KERMEL -

assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPOQ‘T“ I

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

Scope limitation — prior year's audit scope limitation
affecting comparative figures

As detailed in our report dated 18 July 2007 on the
Group's financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2007, because of the significance of the possible effects
arising from the limitation in evidence made available to
us, we were unable to obtain sufficient audit evidence or
perform alternative audit procedures to satisfy ourselves as
to whether the financial statements were fairly stated and
free from material misstatement as to the deconsolidation
of Gold United International Industries Limited and its
subsidiary, #UMNEERAFAZEFR AT, that gave rise to a
loss of HK$7,194,000 recorded in the year ended 31 March
2007 and the carrying amount of net assets deconsolidated
of approximately HK$17,435,000 as of 1 April 2006, as
disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements. In respect
of the limitation of scope in prior year in the matter as
described above, we are unable to express our opinion as
to whether the balances brought forward as at 1 April 2007
and the comparative figures were fairly stated in the financial
statements.

-y

BB &

BB 2 EE(E)

BERSRATEFAEREBSEA M HR
RIBHECBEMRBEEN 2BRERE - T8
EZ 2P BUR M AZ BN 2 #I 6 - BT
HRAFFRERMEBM BHRERFEEX
R B - B EZRFRARE - &
BREEEZARRELEEMATHE
5B A5 R AR 2 MEREEE - ARRGEHEE
ZEZERF  BXFESE AR ZAREE
MYBEBRRER -BERNBRIBESMH
REZEABERNEBEERMELO &
HENEGEN  URFEMBRR 2 BR
EX T

BMEGE BRMAMES2EREERRR
FOEEMRBRMZELT RIRHER -

REERRZEE

ERHEEZRE - LFEZEREEZR
FRELRETF

BOBRMR=ZZTZLFLA+ AR &
EEHEE_TTEF-A=Z+—RHULEFE
ZHBHRER 2 BEMFL - BRERMIAE
BEXRABER ZEER  BMEE
FEBSRRELRT  ATHMERRE
FAEMESHMBEREERR AR REK
BARMMEERBFAZEER A ATUELR
AEARGROT B RERMIISFAEE - A
MRBE_ZTTLtFZA=Z1+—RHLFE
$£157,194,0008 T2 R RZZEE X
FMA—BZEBEUHEGAE AREEFED
17,435,000/ 70) & & B R B 75 ) & A E
PAFRM - RIWES KERMRM - 3t
MEEREFECEZBEZRSE - FK M
REFNR-_TTLFUNA—RALEE BB
AR EETEEE R EHREARQFT
BRmMERER -

EiERBEMAR QT 2008 £1)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB IR &

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION (continued)

ye limitation - prior year's audit scope limitation
ting comparative figures (continued)

There were no other satisfactory audit procedures that we
could adopt to satisfy ourselves as to the matters above.

QUALIFIED OPINION ARISING FROM
LIMITATION OF AUDIT SCOPE

In our opinion, except for the effects of such adjustments, if
any, as might have been determined to be necessary had we
been able to satisfy ourselves as to comparative figures, the
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2008
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ting Ho Kwan & Chan
Certified Public Accountants (practising)
Hong Kong, 28 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FE R

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EEBN\E e S
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
= TET TAT
Turnover EXR 7 655,960 361,961
Cost of sales HEKA (680,294) (351,458)
Gross (loss)/profit (E8) /=7 (24,334) 10,503
Other income and gains, net HAb WA R Was 358 7 687 4,866
Administrative expenses THER (44,767) (34,815)
Allowance for impairment of trade EWE S FEMRE L
and other receivables, net RERETE (27,420) (9,289)
Loss from operations LEEE (95,834) (28,735)
Finance costs BERAR 8 (3,545) (5,136)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries B 2 A ES 34 - 18,080
Loss on deconsolidation BUH#R & ABRKTE
of subsidiaries RAZEE 35 - (7,194)
Share of profits less losses i) NG
of associates AR E 1B - (8)
Loss for the year REFEEE 9 (99,379) (22,993)
Attributable to: AT AT :
Equity holders of the Company RRAERFFA A 12 (99,379) (22,993)
Basic loss per share FARRAAERTE
attributable to the equity holders ANEEBRERER
of the Company during the year 13 (19.0) centsi#All (5.7) centsiE 4l

The notes on pages 44 to 143 are an integral part of these EHRF44EF143B 2T ALEES

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HEEERER

““At 31 March 2008
R==E=8=+—H

2008 2007
—EENE —ETAF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M eE FET FHEIT
Non-current Assets FEMENEE
Property, plant and equipment M=~ BB RERE 14 2,934 1,751
Goodwill EES 16 7,505 -
Available-for-sale financial assets A HELRIEE 19 666 12,852
Deposits paid for acquisition W BB B B8 A B RS
of subsidiaries e 20 54,020 =
65,125 14,603
Current Assets MBEE
Inventories FE 21 6,712 6,594
Trade and other receivables JEWE 5 K B M BRIA 22 45,358 128,632
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFFAEBRZ
through profit or loss HEihemEE 23 36,082 41,574
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIReFREIER 24 130,905 177,312
219,057 354,112
Current Liabilities mBEE
Trade and other payables e B 5 K EMARIE 25 25,050 20,886
Amount due to a minority FEASTFT B A A
shareholder of a subsidiary D EAR R TR 26 12,787 5,233
Bank borrowings RITIE 27 37,205 43,815
Obligation under a finance lease ~ EE&E RS H&IE 28 525 -
75,567 69,934
Net Current Assets mEEEFE 143,490 284,178
Net Assets BEFE 208,615 298,781

38
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEijT

HEEEREAER

At 31 March 2008
RZEZENF=A=+—H

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt EE FHET FHT
Equity s
Capital and reserves attributable to AR RIEZFHE A
the Company’s equity holders: FEAE B N it -
Share capital & 7 30 5,344 5,137
Share premium WD 5 B 593,840 584,307
Other reserves H b i 32 783,477 784,004
Accumulated losses E S| (1,174,046) (1,074,667)
Total Equity - L 208,615 298,781

The financial statements on pages 44 to 143 were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28 July
2008 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ho Chi Ho
&=
DIRECTOR
EF

The notes on pages 44 to 143 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

EEeERN _ZEZTN\FLA -+ A\B#E
BIRPETI B E 44T E 143 8 2 B I8l & -
WHINTAEIRERESTZHRZ :

Ma Kwok Hung, Warren
SRS
DIRECTOR
EF

HNFAEBV43E AR EHRE Y
Bxz— 80 -

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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BALANCE SHEET
BEAREAR

““At 31 March 2008

o= F = +—H

2008 2007
—EEN\FE T
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
M eE FET FET

Non-current Assets EREEE
Property, plant and equipment M - W MRE 14 141 28
Interests in subsidiaries N NIEINGIPE £ 17 216,418 31,629
216,559 31,657

Current Assets MBEE
Other receivables H b e I BRIE 22 224 52,117
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS FREEAE 24 9,936 176,898
10,160 229,015
Current Liabilities mEAE

Other payables H qth fE 1~ AR 1B 25 5,542 6,021
Net Current Assets mENVEEFE 4,618 222,994
Net Assets BEFE 221,177 254,651

Capital and Reserves BARRFEE
Share capital & 7 30 5,344 5,137
Reserves e 32 215,833 249,514
Total Equity - gL 221,177 254,651

Ho Chi Ho
&=z
DIRECTOR
EE

The notes on pages 44 to 143 are an integral part of these

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

5 nﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁé

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

Share
Share  premium Other Accumulated Minority
capital account reserves losses interests Total
DH
k& ROREERE - HttRE  RHER  RRER nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAT TR FAT FAT TAT
THE GROUP LS
Balance at 1 April 2006 RZEERE
mA—B 2% 3512 481286 777020 (1,051674) 10241 220385
Issue of shares B 1,600 102,260 - - 103,860
Share issue expenses RiETRX - (279) - - (279)
Share options granted R BARE - - 7,658 - 7,658
Exercise of share options e 25 1,040 (337) - 728
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (22,993) - (22,993)
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries  BUH&R & ABHB L E - - - (10241)  (10,241)
Currency translation differences ~E¥HBEZE - - (337) - (337)
Balance at 31 March 2007 R-ZZTLEF=A
=t—-Bz#H 5,137 584,307 784,004  (1,074,667) - 298,781
Share options granted KL EERE - - 2726 = 2726
Exercise of share options TiERERE 207 9,533 (3,091) - - 6,649
Loss for the year TEEER - - - (99,379) - (99,379)
Currency translation differences ~ E¥HBEZE - - (162) - (162)
Balance at 31 March 2008 RZZEN\F=A
oy el = -3 5,344 593,840 783,477 (1,174,046) - 208,615
The notes on pages 44 to 143 are an integral part of these R F44EZF143E M T ANRELREN

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HERERER

““For the year ended 31 March 2008

HE_EEANF=A=+—HIEFE

2008 2007
ZEENE ZETHF
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
(i FERT FAET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Loss from operations LEER (95,834) (28,735)
Adjustments for: KToEEHE
Interest income MEWA 7 (376) (206)
Depreciation and amortisation of ER T
property, plant and equipment RGIEREH 14 876 594
Loss on disposal of property, HENE  BER
plant and equipment Bpd St 4 -
Net realised losses (gains) on BRATEFABGZ
financial assets at fair value TREEDER
through profit or loss BR (k%) #48 25,420 (7,380)
Net unrealised losses (gains) on BATEH ARG
financial assets at fair value TREECAER
through profit or loss B () B8 7.9 3,134 (4,119)
Allowance for impairment of trade ERE SR EMEREL
and other receivables BB 27,420 9,289
Equity-settled share option A EBRE S
expenses 2,726 7,658
Exchange differences SRBEER 15 -
Operating cash outflows before BEESRDAIZ
movements in working capital RERSRH (36,615) (22,899)
Decrease (Increase) in inventories BERD (Em) 521 (4,675)
Decrease in trade and other FEWE 5 R EA
receivables BRI 75,024 6,155
(Increase) Decrease in financial assets at A FEFABREZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE (M) RS (23,062) 80,912
Decrease in trade and B8 5 REMRER D
other payables (36,896) (2,243)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED gezn (MR ME
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReFE (21,028) 57,250
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEE
Interest received EHF S 7 376 206
Purchase of property, plant BEWE  WERZE
and equipment 14 (984) (255)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHE AR 33 29,109 -
Deposit paid for acquisition WEEHB AR 2 ke
of subsidiaries 20 (54,020) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRR 34 - 32,702
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries BUHGA AR B A A 35 - (7.217)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEWHESREE
financial assets - (148)
NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED R&EEZD (FA)RE
FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES B4TE (25,519) 25,288
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMEI;#T

HEBRERER

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2008 2007
—EENE “TTLF
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
P &% FHER THL

FINANCING ACTIVITIES METH
New bank borrowings raised ERITEE 42 36,490
Net proceeds from issue of shares BRGNS HIEFE 6,442 103,581
Proceeds on exercise TR REMEHE

of share options 207 728
Advance from a minority REMBARDERE 22K

shareholder of a subsidiary 7,554 2,791
Repayment of obligation under EBEREHERE

a finance lease (74) -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITEE (6,659) (52,257)
Interest paid ERHME (3,545) (5,136)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM RETBMERL3E

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 3,967 86,197
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN ReRRLZIEEE (HD)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BFE (42,580) 168,735
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FENzHERASEHER

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 170,340 1,579
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXSB¥E

RATE CHANGES 742 26
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT ERVHESRASEHER

END OF THE YEAR 24 128,502 170,340

The notes on pages 44 to 143 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

HNFA4EF 43R MERLFHRAMBERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

1.

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The
registered office of the Company is located at Clarendon
House, Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Group is located at Unit
3411, 34/F COSCO Tower, Grand Millennium Plaza, 183
Queen'’s Road Central, Hong Kong. The principal activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 46.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared, except for the deconsolidation
of subsidiaries as explained in note 35 to the financial
statements, in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), which also include Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS") and Interpretations
(“Int") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for certain
financial assets and financial liabilities which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The area involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRS
that are first effective for the accounting period beginning
on or after 1 January 2007 as follows:

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 (Amendment)  Presentation of Financial Statements
— Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement Approach
under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting
in Hyperinflationary Economies

HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(IFRIC) — Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

HK(IFRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share

Transactions

The adoption of the new HKFRSs had no material effect
on how the results and financial position for the current
or prior accounting periods have been prepared and
presented. Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has
been required.

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised
HKFRS are summarised as follows:

(a) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
This standard introduces new disclosures relating to
financial instruments and does not have any impact
on the classification and valuation of the Group's
financial instruments, or the disclosures relating to
taxation and trade and other payables.

BAFE IR R P EE -

For the year ended 31 March 2008 e ¥
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures
This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group’s objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 42(b) to the
financial statements.

(c) HK(IFRIC) — Int 7 Applying the Restatement
Approach under HKAS 29 Financial Reporting in
Hyperinflationary Economies
This interpretation provides guidance on
how to apply requirements of HKAS 29 in a
reporting period in which an entity identifies the
existence of hyperinflation in the economy of its
functional currency, when the economy was not
hyperinflationary in the prior period. As none of the
Group entities have a currency of a hyperinflationary
economy as its functional currency, this interpretation
is not relevant to the Group's operations.

(d) HK(IFRIC) — Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires consideration of
transactions involving the issuance of equity
instruments, where the identifiable consideration
received is less than the fair value of the equity
instruments issued in order to establish whether or
not they fall within the scope of HKFRS 2. As the
Company has only issued equity instruments to its
employees in accordance with the Company’s share
option scheme, the interpretation does not have any
impact on the Group's financial statements.

(e) HK(FRIC) - Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives
This interpretation requires that the date to assess
whether an embedded derivative is required
to be separated from the host contract and
accounted for as a derivative is the date that the
Group first becomes a party to the contract, with
reassessment only if there is a change to the
contract that significantly modifies the cash flows.
This interpretation is not relevant for the Group's
operations and does not have any impact on the
Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

(f) HK(FRIC) - Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting
and Impairment
This interpretation prohibits the impairment losses
recognised in an interim period on goodwill and
investments in equity instruments and in financial
assets carried at cost to be reversed at a subsequent
balance sheet date. This interpretation does not have
any impact on the Group's financial statements.

(g) HK(FRIC) — Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury
Share Transactions
This interpretation provides guidance on whether
share-based transactions involving treasury shares
or involving Group entities (for example, options
over a parent's shares) should be accounted for as
equity-settled or cash-settled share-based payment
transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the
parent and Group companies. This interpretation
does not have an impact on the Group's financial
statements.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments, new standards and interpretations that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The Group
is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments, new standards and
new interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Other than certain new or amended
disclosures in the financial statements may be required,
it was concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely
to have a significant impact on the Company's results of
operations and financial position.

BA TSR R B aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2. BHMREREE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

3. HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 3.
STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET

FRAERMERERZEE
B EER (F)

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR (continued)

HK(IFRIC) = Int 12
B4 (BRMBREARZEE) —REE12%
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14

Effective for accounting
period beginning on or after
RIS Rz &2

S HERRER

Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008
R R “ZZ\§-A-H
HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Assets,

Minimum Funding Requirement and their Interaction 1 January 2008
Bt (BRRBHREREEES) —2BE 1450 BRI ENE 9% - ReNGEEZRE

REESBHAREMEZHE —2EN\F-H-H
HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008
Bt (ARMBHREREZEEG) 2B 135 EF RS “TE\FLA-H
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 January 2009
ARG ERE% (Bk) FHRK 25 —EENF-H-H
HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs 1 January 2009
BEGRERF23% (k) fEE AR “ZTNFE-A-H
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments 1 January 2009
BB REER RS KN “EENF-A-R
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 1 July 2009
BB G BRI (BX) A RBLMBRE “ETNFLA-H
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 1 July 2009

BEMBERELENEIR (BX) EHadt
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out
below:

(a) Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the effective date of
acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTHRBE(E)

(b) Subsidiaries (b) HEAF

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Company
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interests. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

Minority interests represent the portion of the net
assets of subsidiaries attributable to interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly
or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of
which the Group has not agreed any additional terms
with the holders of those interests which would
result in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. Minority interests
are presented in the consolidated balance sheet
within equity, separately from equity attributable to
the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority exceed the
minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the
minority, are charged against the Group's interest
except to the extent that the minority has a binding
obligation to, and is able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority's share of
losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.

In the Company's balance sheet the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

©

(d)

Associates

Associates are all entities, not being a subsidiary
or a jointly controlled entity, over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation
in the financial and operating policy decisions,
generally accompanying a shareholding of between
20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in
associates are accounted for by the equity method
of accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group's investments in associates include goodwill
(net of any accumulated impairment loss) identified
on acquisition.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition
results is recognised in the income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves
is recognised in reserves. The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's
share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary
at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions
of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually
for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill
are not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal
of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill
relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or Groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. TESTHRBE(E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
AR TERRE= A=+ —HAILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products
or services within a particular economic environment
(geographical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other
segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the primary reporting
format and geographical segment information as the
secondary reporting format for the purposes of these
financial statements.

Segment revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities include items directly attributable to a
segment as well as those that can be allocated on
a reasonable basis to that segment. For example,
segment assets may include inventories, trade
receivables and property, plant and equipment.
Segment revenue, expenses, assets, and liabilities
are determined before intra-group balances and
intra-group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process, except to the extent that such
intra-group balances and transactions are between
group entities within a single segment. Inter-segment
pricing is based on similar terms as those available
to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets (both
tangible and intangible) that are expected to be used
for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise financial and
corporate assets, interest-bearing loans, borrowings,
tax balances, corporate and financing expenses. A
discontinued segment is separately presented from
continuing segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTHRBE(E)

WA 2R

(f) Revenue recognition ®

Sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised on a trade-date basis.

Rental income is recognised on a straight line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

When the renovation services are provided and the
outcome of the renovation project can be estimated
reliably, renovation service income is recognised on
the percentage of completion method measured by
reference to the value of work carried out during
the year. When the outcome of a renovation project
cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of the project costs incurred that it
is probable will be recoverable.

Sales of building materials are recognised when they
are delivered and title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being
the estimated future cash flow discounted at
original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loans is recognised
either as cash is collected or on a cost-recovery basis
as conditions warrant.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the Group's rights to receive payment have
been established prior to the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(g) Investment properties
Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied
by the companies in the consolidated Group, is
classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under
operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property when the
rest of the definition of investment property is met.
The operating lease is accounted for as if it were a
finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its
cost, including related transaction costs. After
initial recognition, investment property is carried
at fair value. Fair value is based on active market
prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any difference
in the nature, location or condition of the specific
asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. These valuations are performed
in accordance with the guidance issued by the
international Valuation Standards Committee. These
valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for
continuing use as investment property, or for which
the market has become less active, continues to be
measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among
other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases
in the light of current market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTHRBE(E)

(8) REMX (&)

(g) Investment properties (continued)

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any
cash outflows that could be expected in respect of
the property. Some of those outflows are recognised
as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property,
others, including contingent rent payments, are not
recognised in the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's
carrying amount only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
costs are expensed in the income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the income
statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied,
it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment
and its fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its cost for accounting purposes. Property
that is being constructed or developed for future use
as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost until construction
or development is complete, at which time it is
reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. However, if a
fair value gain reverses a previous impairment loss,
the gain is recognised in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(®

(h)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefits are expected from its disposal.
The gain or loss arising from the retirement or
disposal of investment property, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the investment property, is
recognised in the income statement in the period of
the retirement or disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable
to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains/losses
on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency
purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are expensed in the income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation and amortisation are provided to write
off the cost of other property, plant and equipment
to their residual values (if any) over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the
following rates per annum:

Over the term of the lease
2% to 4% or over the term
of the lease, if shorter
10% to 15% or over the
term of the lease, if shorter
10% to 30%

Leasehold land
Leasehold buildings

Leasehold improvements

Others
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h) Property, plant and equipment (continued)

0)

The assets’ residual values (if any) and useful
lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate at
each balance sheet date. An item of fixed asset
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. The gain or loss
on derecognition of the asset, calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item, is included
in the income statement in the period the item is
derecognised.

An asset's carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's
carrying amount is greater than its estimated
recoverable amount.

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and
available-for-sale financial assets. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the investments
were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its investments at initial recognition
and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
This category has two sub-categories: financial
assets held for trading, and those designated
at fair value through profit or loss at inception.
A financial asset is classified in this category
if acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the short term or if so designated by
management. Derivatives are also categorised as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading
or are expected to be realised within 12 months
of the balance sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(i) Financial assets (continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor
with no intention of trading the receivable.
They are included in current assets, except for
maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date which are classified as non-
current assets.

(iii) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless management intends to dispose of
the investment within 12 months of the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTHRBE(E)

(i) Financial assets (continued)

(i) eREE(HE)

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised
on trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value
through profit or loss. Investments are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial
assets and financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans
and receivables and held-to-maturity investments
are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Realised and unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are included in the income statement in
the period in which they arise. Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value
of non-monetary securities classified as available-
for-sale are recognised in equity. When securities
classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired,
the accumulated fair value adjustments are included
in the income statement as gains or losses from
investment securities.

The fair values of quoted investments are based
on current bid prices. If the market for a financial
asset is not active (and for unlisted securities),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation
techniques. These include the use of recent arm'’s
length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow
analysis, and option pricing models refined to reflect
the issuer's specific circumstances.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets
(i) Impairment of investments equity securities and
other receivables
Investment in equity securities and other current
and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable
data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)

0,

Impairment of investments equity securities and
other receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss
is determined and recognised as follows:

—  For unquoted equity securities carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the carrying amount
of the financial asset and the estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is
material. Impairment losses for equity
securities are not reversed.

—  For trade and other current receivables and
other financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset's original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried
at amortised cost share similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due
status, and have not been individually
assessed as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments equity securities and

other receivables (continued)
If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset's carrying amount exceeding that
which would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior

years.

— For available-for-sale securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in equity is removed from equity
and is recognised in profit or loss. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is
recognised in profit or loss is the difference
between the acquisition cost (net of any
principal repayment and amortisation) and
current fair value, less any impairment loss
on that asset previously recognised in profit
or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in profit or
loss in respect of available-for-sale equity
securities are not reversed through profit
or loss. Any subsequent increase in the fair
value of such assets is recognised directly
in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
B 5 $R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. T E€HEME &)
POLICIES (continued)

() EEREE)
() RAEZFFRERE M ER I

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of investments equity securities and

other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors included within trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
allowance for impairment of bad and doubtful
debts are recorded using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade debtors and bills
receivable directly and any amounts held in
the allowance account relating to that debt are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are
reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indicators that the following assets may be
impaired or, except in the case of goodwill, an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased:

— property, plant and equipment (other than
properties carried at revalued amounts);

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land
classified as being held under an operating
lease;

— investments in subsidiaries (except for
those classified as held for sale or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale); and

—  goodwill

If any such indication exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. In addition,
for goodwill, intangible assets that are not yet
available for use and intangible assets that have
indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is
estimated annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its net selling price and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash flows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. cash-generated unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an
asset, or the cash-generating unit to which
it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect of
cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generated units (or
group of units) and then, to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the
unit (or group of units) on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair
value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(j) Impairment of assets (continued)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than goodwill,
an impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is
not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited
to the asset's carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior years.
Reversals of impairment losses are credited
to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(k) Inventories
Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the
acquisition cost, architect's fees and other direct
costs attributable to such properties.

Other inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is calculated using the first-in,
first-out method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(I) Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and, after initial recognition, at amortised
cost less any allowance for impairment of bad and
doubtful debts, except for the following receivables:

— interest-free loans made to related parties
without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting being immaterial, that
are measured at cost less any allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts; and

— short term receivables with no stated interest
rate and the effect of discounting being
immaterial, that are measured at their original
invoiced amount less any allowance for
impairment of bad and doubtful debts.

(m) Leases
(i) Operating lease (both as the lessee or the
lessor)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks
and rewards of ownership are retained by the
lessor are classified as operating leases. Where
the Group is the lessee, payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received
from the lessor) are expensed in the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are
credited to the income statement in a straight
line basis over the lease period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Leases (continued)

4. T ESTBRBE(E)

(m) & (&)

(i) Finance lease (as the lessee)

Leases of assets where the Group has
substantially obtained all the risks and rewards
of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Finance leases are capitalised at the lease's
commencement at the lower of the fair value
of the leased property and the present value
of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and
finance charges so as to achieve a constant
rate on the finance balance outstanding. The
corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in current and non-current
obligation under a finance lease. The interest
element of the finance cost is recognised in the
income statement over the lease period so as
to produce a constant periodic rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period. The investment properties acquired
under finance leases are carried at their fair
value, while the property, plant and equipment
acquired under finance leases are depreciated
over the shorter of the useful lives of the assets
or the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Foreign currencies

0,

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of
each of the Group's entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (“the
functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK dollars, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income
statement, except when deferred in equity as
qualifying cash flow hedges or qualifying net
investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary items,
such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the
fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary items, such as equities classified
as available-for-sale financial assets, are included
in the fair value reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Foreign currencies (continued)
(iif) Group companies
The results and financial position of all
the group entities (none of which has the
currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that
have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of
the transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised as a separate component of
equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are taken to shareholders’
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the
income statement as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
B 5 $R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

4. TESTHRBE(E)

(0) Income tax (o) FEH

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax is recognised in the income statement
or in equity if it relates to items that are recognised
in the same or a different period, directly in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates (and
laws) enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, if the deferred tax arises
from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for.
Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the
deferred tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and
jointly controlled entities, except where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(p) Employee benefits

0,

(ii)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans under
the mandatory provident fund scheme, the
ORSO scheme and state-managed retirement
benefits scheme are charged as expenses as
they fall due.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates share options scheme
where employees (and including directors)
are granted options to acquire shares of the
Company at specified exercise prices. The
fair value of the employee services received
in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any
non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets). Non-
market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. At each balance sheet
date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the income statement, with
a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited
to share capital (nominal value) and share
premium when the options are exercised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Construction contracts

When the outcome of a construction contract can
be estimated reliably, contract costs are charged to
the income statement by reference to the stage of
completion of the contract activity at the balance
sheet date, as measured by the proportion that costs
incurred to date bear to estimated total costs for the
contract.

When the outcome of a construction contract cannot
be estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will
exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress
billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where
progress billings exceed contract costs incurred to
date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers
for contract work. Amounts received before the
related work is performed are included in the
balance sheet, as a liability, as advances received.
Amounts billed for work performed but not yet paid
by the customer are included in the balance sheet
under trade and other receivables.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTEAF=A=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities
(1) Financial guarantees issued
Financial guarantees are contracts that require
the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the beneficiary of the
guarantee (the "holder”) for a loss the holder
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade and
other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee,
the consideration is recognised in accordance
with the Group's policies applicable to that
category of asset. Where no such consideration
is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial
recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or
loss over the term of the guarantee as income
from financial guarantees issued. In addition,
provisions are recognised in accordance with
note 4(s)(iii) if and when (1) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will
call upon the Group under the guarantee, and
(2) the amount of that claim on the Group is
expected to exceed the amount currently carried
in trade and other payables in respect of that
guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised,
less accumulated amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Contingent liabilities acquired in business
combinations

Contingent liabilities acquired as part of a
business combination are initially recognised
at fair value, provided the fair value can be
reliably measured. After their initial recognition
at fair value, such contingent liabilities are
recognised at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that would
be determined in accordance with note 4(s)(iii).
Contingent liabilities acquired in a business
combination that cannot be reliably fair valued
are disclosed in accordance with note 4(s)(iii).

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTEAF=A=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

®

(v)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been
within three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group's cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash
flow statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at
fair value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities
(if any) measured in accordance with note 4(s)(i),
trade and other payables are subsequently stated at
amortised cost except for the following payables:

— short-term payables with no stated interest rate
and the effect of discounting being immaterial,
that are measured at their original invoiced
amount; and

— interest free loans from related parties without
any fixed repayment terms or the effect of
discounting being immaterial, that are measured
at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

v)

(w)

Bank and other borrowings

Bank and other borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or
disposal of a financial asset or financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to agents,
advisers, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory
agencies and securities exchanges, and transfer
taxes and duties. Bank and other borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Bank and other borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the balance sheet date.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital (Treasury shares), the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company's equity
holders until the shares are cancelled, reissued or
disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently
sold or reissued, any consideration received, net of
any directly attributable incremental transaction costs
and the related income tax effects, is included in
equity attributable to the Company’'s equity holders.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

*)

)

Discontinued operation

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group's business, the operations and cash flows of
which can be clearly distinguished from the rest of
the Group and which represents a separate major
line of business or geographical area of operations,
or is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose
of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired
exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs
upon disposal or when the operation meets the
criteria to be classified as held for sale, if earlier. It
also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

Where an operation is classified as discontinued,
a single amount is presented on the face of the
income statement, which comprises:

— the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell,
or on the disposal, of the assets or disposal
group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related to the Group
if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over
the party in making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the party are
subject to common control or common significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals (being
members of key management personnel, significant
shareholders and/or their close family members) or
other entities and include entities which are under
the significant influence of related parties of the
Group where those parties are individuals, and post-
employment benefit plans which are for the benefit
of employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008

4. T ESTBRBE(E)

®)

)

BRI
ERLEXRB/AARNEEER 2 — B
- ERZERBASREATENE
BHEMEXBEERY  MES—
BYETBXRBRIMERETR - KE
SERNFEE 2 —2HHE—
REY X BEBRIMEETS - X
WE—XEMRFEENHE R
=] o

EXBREEAFARFER - U
RELHRE/E  IWREE/C
RIERT - EXBRBRER TR
BREKIERR -

MEBHREFBRRERLERLE  —
HE-2HeERARERAR
2% ZE2BRERE -

Y

- EBEREXRBZBHRKERS:
K

- BHERAZKHEBERRAF

EREERE  HIZHER
RIEXBMEESHEAR
R ERAFE -

BEAL

AR RN £R [ BE 50 B R Sk R AR
H— A A 5 — T MR 5 A
RERRBEATE 57
REME R kR R R A S B Y
AEBHNPBMEERREEKX
SAREEES S RKE
E=7THNEHNIEEATE
BRENZ— AR RAEENE
BAL o BEALTRIARMEA (B
BMREBAS FEERRR %
A PIRE R TR RIEAK B) =X
HibEE YHBRRXIAKE
BEREASDOEEALEAR
ENER UMBAEEHIES
AEBEBEALNEFNEROE
& 8 NI T &% A BB R 43 R 5T &

=
=1



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal to the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

(i) Estimate of fair value of unlisted securities

Certain unlisted securities included in available-for-
sale financial assets are stated at cost at the balance
sheet date as the Group determines the fair value
of such assets closely approximates to the cost. For
the unlisted securities valued at fair value, the Group
uses the discounted cashflows valuation method
and makes assumptions that are based on market
conditions existing at each balance sheet date for the
determination of the fair value.

(ii)) Allowance for impairment of trade and other
receivables
The Group assesses impairment of trade and
other receivables based upon evaluation of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables at
each balance sheet date. The estimates are based on
the ageing of the trade and other receivables and the
historical write-off experience, net of recoveries. If the
financial condition of the debtors were to deteriorate,
additional impairment may be required.

5.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(iii) Impairment of property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are tested for
impairment if there is any indication that the carrying
value of these assets may not be recoverable and
the assets are subject to an impairment loss. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. The value
in use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the relevant
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate is
used in order to calculate the present value.

(iv) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has
suffered any impairment, in accordance with
the accounting policy stated in note 4(d). The
recoverable amounts of cash-generating units have
been determined based on value in use calculations.
These calculations require the use of estimates (note
16).

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For management purpose, the Group is currently
organised into four major operating divisions — securities
trading and investment, trading of building materials and
renovation services, property development and sales and
property rental. In 2007, the operation of toll highway was
excluded by deconsolidation of a group of subsidiaries
holding the relevant assets.

These divisions are the basis on which the Group reports
its primary segment information.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008

5. BREeHhEr kA E (&)

(i) W%  WERRB2ZBE
MEERTRBARZEEE K
EEE A EARE RZEEE
HIRBERBRE  AEAHYE B
B R EETRERF o A E
CHRREBEZAFERBBEEKAR
HERBEEMEZBRSE FE
EREEERAKE MG ARA
TELEVRAYPELEZARRS
MERARFERBZEE TR

(iv) fhEtEERE
REBEFREIHN M E4(d)
ZEBRRAAHERTRE -
ReELABEUZAROEBEE
REEERAEIERE - % F&t
HFEERMEE (HEEe) o

6. DEER

ES g

REEMS  ARERK D ROET
RLEIN-EBEFEERRE  ZEE
MEE 5 REERE MEERNHE
ERMEFHRE-R-_TFT+LF - —4
FEREBLAREEEEZHMBAR
RUB& A AR °



Business segments (continued)
An analysis of the Group’s turnover, contribution to
operating results and segment assets and liabilities by

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

+
BA F5 R R B 5
For the year ended 31 March 2008 i Wl
RE-FE\F=A=t AL%E \‘

6. TEEFR (&)

EBo® (&)
UT2IBEBDBOM 2 AEEE
B REXEER HHMEERE

business segments is presented as follows: & :
2008 —EEN\F
Trading of
Securities building
trading materials and Property
and  renovation development Property
investment services  and sales rental  Unallocated Consolidated
BEMH
BHEE EZR NRERE
RE RER® R#E EZ AR )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER FTER FTER TER TER
INCOME STATEMENT gt
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BEZ-ZE)\E=R
31 MARCH 2008 =t-RLEE
REVENUE K
External sales HINEE 647,550 8,410 - - - 655,960
Segment results AE%E (28,503) (3,980) (19,996) - - (52,479)
Unallocated other operating A2 B Eft
income EEHA 405
Unallocated corporate APRAT]
expenses A% (43,760)
Loss from operations 2EER (95,834)
Finance costs AR (3,545)
Loss for the year AEREEBR (99,379)
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

2008
Securities
trading
and
investment
BFEER
RE
HK$'000
T
BALANCE SHEET EEREX
AT 31 MARCH 2008 R=BEN\E=B=t+-H
ASSETS K&
Segment assets NEEE 49,380
Unallocated corporate assets KA RAREE
Consolidated total assets GREESE
LIABILITIES =
Segment liabilities PHAER 15,373
Unallocated corporate AAMARAE
liabilities
Consolidated total liabilities 44 & E%25E
OTHER INFORMATION Hit &R
FOR THE YEAR ENDED HECEZEZ)\E
31 MARCH 2008 ZA=t-HLEEE
Addition of goodwill MERE -
Capital additions MEER -
Depreciation and amortisation ¥7% J#34 -
Mlowance for impairment ~ EKE S &
of trade and other HEfiRE 2
receivables, net RERESS -
Net unrealised loss on BATEG AR
financial assets at fair LEREEL
value through profit or loss ~ RERERFE 3,134

Trading of
building
materials and
renovation
services
BEMH
EaR
KERY
HK$'000
T

3,423

4,288

87

908

6. THEH (&)
B8 (E)
—BEN\F

Property
development Property
and sales rental

NXBE

R#E NERE
HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TER

119,908 -

2,635 =

7505 =

507 =

15,412 =

Unallocated Consolidated

ROE
HK$'000
TER

1,562
282

11,100

&8
HK$'000
TR

172,711

111,471

284,182

22,296

53,271

75,567

7,505
1,583
876

27,420

3,134
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6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E&)
Business segments (continued) EBo®(E)
2007 —EELHF
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REXK ERIEEH
Trading of
Securities building
trading materialsand ~ Property Operation
and  renovation development  Property of tol
investment senvices  and sales rental  Unallocated highway  Consolidated
B R
BREER  BOR DEER KBRH
RE RERE  REE PEEE Aok £E e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TER TER TARL TEn TERL
INCOME STATEMENT W%
FOR THE YEAR ENDED BZ-23t5=h
31 MARCH 2007 Zt-BLEE
REVENUE s
Extemal sales g 351,937 9,986 2 16 - - 36191
Segment results ABEE 11,604 5 (10949) 11 - - 720
Unallocated other operating APREMEERA
income 66
Unallocated corporate AARATR
expenses (29,521)
Loss from operations LERR (28735)
Finance costs MENA (5,136)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ~ HEMBAENE 18,080
Loss on deconsolidation of REA AR
subsidiaries WELREE (7194)
Share of profits less losses EfhBE
of associates wHRER (8)
Loss for the year rEEEE (22993)

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

6. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Business segments (continued)

2007

BALANCE SHEET
AT 31 MARCH 2007

ASSETS
Segment assets

Unallocated comorate assets

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities

OTHER INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2007

Capital additions

Depreciation and amortisation

Allowance for impairment
of trade and other
receivables, net

Net unrealised gain on financial
assefs at fair value through

profit or loss

REARR
R-BRLEZA=+-H

Efyas
BE-ZStE=f
St-ALEE

e
FERES
BHEZR
211852
AERERE
BT

Bt RAE
AERNLEE

6. TEHEHR (&)

KB (E)
—EELHF
Discontinued
Continuing operations operation
REXH ERLEH
Trading of
Securities building
trading materialsand ~ Property Operation
and  renovation development  Property of tol
investment senvices  and sales rental  Unallocated highway
BEMH
EFEE AR WEEE WE R
RRE REBRE REE 9EEE  ROK 28
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR TER TER
107266 5440 26,960 = = -
= 2,207 12,655 = = =
. 255 - - - -
= 94 354 = 146 =
- (960) 10249 - - -
4119 - - - - -

Consolidated

= A
&a

HK$ 000
T

139,666
229,049

368,715

255
594

9,289
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
B 5 $R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)

Geographical segments

All of the Group's operations are principally located in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). The Group's administration is carried out in Hong
Kong.

An analysis of the Group's turnover by geographical
market, irrespective of the origin of the goods and
services, is presented below:

6.

DEER (E)

i & 2 &

REBRERBIEURETERPE
ARKME (THE]) - AEEZ1TH
THERBEETT

UT2IAEERBEBTIHE D2 &
R (T Em MR RIRM) DA -

2008 2007

—EENF —TTLF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THERT FHET

Hong Kong i 655,960 361,939
The PRC a2 - 22
655,960 361,961

The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of
assets, and capital additions to goodwill and property,
plant and equipment, analysed by the geographical area
in which the assets are located:

T AREEMEDES? AERE
EARBERDE  BERREER
#8002 S ¢

Carrying amount of assets

Capital additions to
goodwill and property,
plant and equipment

BEEME  BER

BEERMEE Rz EREM
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBENE | —TTLF | ZBBN\F | _TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER THTT FER THTT
Hong Kong E 218,308 341,164 1,568 255
The PRC 1 65,874 27,551 7,520 -
284,182 368,715 9,088 255

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

7. TURNOVER, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS,

NET

Turnover represents the aggregate of the net amounts
received and receivable from third parties, during the
year. An analysis of the Group's turnover, other income
and gains or losses, net is as follows:

EXBE HB ARKZEF

#

EEBREFARE =72 W ELEKER
HFREAS AEBEXER  Hml

AN z8 E 18 B

DT ¢

2008 2007
—BEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Turnover —E 3G
Securities trading and BHBEBERKEAE
investment 647,550 351,937
Renovation services EAS RIS 6,338 4,042
Trading of building materials ~ ZEMEE S 2,072 5,944
Property rental — gross MERE — 85 - 38
655,960 361,961
Other income HA WA
Interest income on financial ~ JERAFEFA
assets not at fair value BRzeREEZ
through profit or loss MEHA 376 206
Sundry income FEEWA 311 541
687 747
Gains, net Wi FRE
Net unrealised gains on BRATERA
financial assets at fair BRzemEEZ
value through profit or loss ANER W FEE - 4,119
687 4,866
656,647 366,827
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
BAFE 3R TP 5

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. L& B A
2008 2007
—EBEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Interest on: FE :
Borrowings wholly repayable 7B AFANZEEH
within five years BEZEE
— bank borrowings —RITEE 3,524 3,581
— other borrowings —EMEE - 1,555
Finance lease SRS 21 -
Total interest expense on W IR A BT AR
financial liabilities not at ZERMBEZ
fair value through profit BB
or loss 3,545 5,136

g E AR A 2008 F3R

87



88

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9. XFEFA
Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging and REEFEBRIOR ERETATSIEEB %
crediting the following: B
2008 2007
—EBEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Charging: MR THIEA -
Staff costs BT
— directors’ remuneration (note 10) - & E8& (#7:E10) 5,244 2,132
— basic salaries and other benefits - EAFH & R EMEF 5,448 2,700
— retirement benefits scheme — RIREAIGT S
contributions 140 101
— share-based payments — AR ST AT FRIA - 6,796
10,832 11,729
Auditors’ remuneration =AD&
— Current year - RNEE 770 700
— Overprovision in prior years - BEAFEBERE - (19)
Depreciation and amortisation of ME - BE KA
property, plant and equipment e R
— Owned assets - BREE 796 594
— Leased asset - HEEE 80 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant ~ HEWXE - BEKX
and equipment R BB 4 -
Net unrealised losses on financial BAVESABRZ
assets at fair value through CREEIAREE
profit or loss B35 3,134 -
Operating lease payments (note 39) & &EMERNK (H:739) 2,096 1,642
Cost of inventories sold BEFEKA 7,324 6,900
and crediting: Kt AT3EE
Net rental income from investment EEBRETREMEZ
properties under operating leases, ~ H&UWAFEE -
after deduction of outgoings of KHBRAOTHE T
approximately HK$nil (ZZZT+ 5 1 1,00087T)
(2007: HK$1,000) - 37
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

RATS SR R M aE
For the year ended 31 March 2008 s N
RE-SE/\F-B=t+ AL%R \‘
10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 10. EERBEEFMALZHE
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed REBEMAERZMERA AR
pursuant to The Rules Governing the Listing of FEMARAREB QRS
Securities on the Stock Exchange and Section 161 of 161 RBEZAFEESME N
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is as follows: T
Retirement
benefits Share-
Directors'  Salaries and scheme based 2008 2007
Name of directors fees  allowances contributions payments Total Total
BN URBXN  ZBRNE ZRFLF
i E27 ESHe  HORER AR ME it szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T TR Tén ThT
Executive directors HiTEF
Mr. Ma Kwok Hung, Warren (note o)~ SEEE (4 a) - 852 12 - 864 488
Mr. Ho Chi Ho (note b) EREE (Wi b) - 1219 12 2726 3,957 975
Mr. Dong Bo, Frederic (note ) EREE (Wit - - - - - 24
Mr. Gao Feng (note d) RELE (Wit d) 19 - - - 19 8
Independent non-executive directors BV H#H/7EE
Mr. Wong Hoi Kuen, Edmund Gl ik 120 - - - 120 120
Mr. Pang Haiou (note €) EAREE (Wiie) - - - - - -
Mr. Zuo Guang (note €) EE%E (Hite) - - - - - -
Mr. Chan Chi Yuen (note f) REREE (Wit 1) 120 - - - 120 110
Mr. Chow Siu Ngor (note g) PPEE W g 120 - - - 120 110
Mr. Tsang Kwong Chiu, Kevin (note h) ZRSI%E (#ih) 44 - - - 44 -
Mr. Ting Leung Huel (note ) TRERE (Wit ) = = = = - =
Mr. Fung Po Chuen (note j) BR2RE (Wit )) - - - - - 10
Mr. Tooze Henry (note j) Henry Tooze & (#iz) = - - - - 10
Total 2008 “TR)\FER 423 2071 p 2,726 5,244 2132
Total 2007 _TELELE 445 810 15 862
89
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)
Notes:

(@

(®

()

0)

90

Appointed on 24 July 2006 and re-designated as non-
executive director on 23 May 2008

Appointed on 2 March 2007
Resigned on 7 November 2006

Resigned on 29 May 2007

Retired on 20 August 2007

Appointed on 30 April 2006

Appointed on 30 April 2006 and re-designated as
non-executive director on 20 November 2007

Appointed on 20 November 2007

Appointed on 30 April 2006 and resigned on 29 May
2006

Resigned on 30 April 2006
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

10. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Highest paid individuals
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group, two (2007: two) were directors of the
Company whose emoluments are set out above. The
emoluments of the remaining individuals were as
follows:

BA TSR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

10. EERBESFMA LT ZHE

(&)

(b) ZEHFMAL
AEEREERTMALERER
Z(ZZEZLF MB)ARAE
ECHEMESHBEN X - iR
AL ZBEF

2008 2007

—EEN\FE BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Salaries and other benefits ¥ & R HE b2 x| 1,231 701
Retirement benefits RONBFFT SR

scheme contributions 22 22

1,253 723

The emoluments of the remaining highest paid
individuals were within the following bands:

Up to HK$1,000,000 1,000,000 7T LA A

HpmeF A LTSN FIATERE

2008 2007
—EEN\F —TT+F
Number of Number of
employees employees

EEAH BEAH
3 3

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals, including
directors and employees, as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for
loss of office. None of the directors has waived any
emoluments during the year.

FAAEEYEA TR R HHA
T(BREFKEER) XML - UE
BMAREBE LN IMAREE 2 ZE
HEB o HE FAYBEENEL
o] B & o

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
AR TERRE= A=+ —HAILFE

11. TAXATION 11. BB
No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax or the PRC income ARAR B REN B A RRWEEE
tax has been made in the financial statements as either HEERTE N - G E BgE

the Company and its subsidiaries have no assessable
profits for both years or have their profits wholly absorbed
by tax losses brought forward.

The taxation on the Group's loss before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the domestic taxation rates applicable to losses of the
consolidated companies as follows:

B EREBRA - ML BRI
BRIELBAMNEH AP B AEHE
o

AEBERBAER 2 HBERERAR
PFAR BB R 2 A R P EE A 2 38
wETEERWT

2008 2007
—EBEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT

Loss before taxation R AT BT 18 (99,379) (22,993)
Tax at the domestic income tax — EAHETS BRI K 17.50%5 &

rate of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) 2B (ZFZTLF 1 17.5%) (17,391) (4,024)
Tax effect of expenses that AR5 2 /Y

are not deductible for MG E

tax purpose 10,326 5,282
Tax effect of income that TE B AR

are not taxable for MR E

tax purpose (1,959) (3,103)
Tax effect of temporary REFARER 2GR

differences not recognised ERNBBTE

for the year (39) 19
Tax effect of tax losses not RNEFEARERZ IS

recognised for the year BREAOTBTE 7,489 -
Tax effect of utilisation of ERAAERIER 2T

tax losses not previously BRNNETE

recognised - (535)
Effect of different tax rates of EEMAEEEREFE Y

subsidiaries operating in MEAR TR KT E

other jurisdictions 1,574 2,361
Taxation charge MIAX - -
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12.

13.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

The loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
is dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
to the extent of loss of HK$42,849,000 (2007:
HK$23,726,000).

BASIC LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based
on the loss for the year of HK$99,379,000 (2007:
HK$22,993,000) and on the weighted average number
of 523,405,439 (2007: 401,304,107) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is not presented as the potential
shares arising from share options granted during the year
ended 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007 would have
anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share.

12.

13.

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

AREREFEARGEER

ARRBREREAEBGEEETEE
842,849,000 L (ZFTZ L F :
23,726,000/ 7T) R AN B B 1% # <
WEFA ©

BREXREE

EREABEBNIREAFEERE
99,379,000 T (ZZEZT £ F :
22,993,000 7T) R FANB EHTEB
% AN S 15 £0523,405,439% (=2 =
+ 4 : 401,304,1070%) 5t & o

HREBEE-ZTENF=ZA=+—H8BxR
Tt =A==+ -BLEFERE
HEREMELEC BERNEHER
EXBHEERRBEZE RAKRZE
SR EEE -

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B F5 R R M EE

““For the year ended 31 March 2008

HE_BENAF=A=+—HIEFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 5% - BERZHE

Leasehold  Leasehold Furniture
Tol  landand  improve-  Plant and Motor and
highway ~ buildings ments  machinery vehicles fixtures Total
BEtH  HENX BE B
KERR kEF k8 k% at- L%E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEn THT Thx Thx ThL TEL ThL
THE GROUP 3]
Cost 8
At 1 April 2006 RZEE/ EMA-A 268,266 3,245 162 731 2,14 798 295,343
Additions i - - - - - 25 255
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ EUREZEABMBLA  (288,266) - - (123) - - (288,989)
Bxchange realignment IE 8% - 147 - I 87 - 235
At 31 March 2007 RZF5+F=R=1-H = 3392 162 9 2228 1,053 6,844
At 1 April 2007 RZFELEMA-A = 3392 162 9 2228 1,053 6,844
Additions e - - - 15 1410 158 1,583
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERERF - - - 11 24 37 292
Disposals i & - - (162) - (225) (313) (700)
Exchange realignment [ RE - 425 - 1 257 1 684
At 31 March 2008 R-FENF=A=1-H - 3817 - 36 3914 936 8,703
Depreciation, amortisation & BEREE
and impairment
At T April 2006 RZEE ERA-A 224,367 3,029 118 168 589 600 228871
Depreciation provided KEEERR
for the year = 14 31 ] 384 164 594
Deconsolidation of subsidiaries ~ FURGRAARMELE  (224,367) - - (162) - - (24529
Exchange realignment S - 137 - I 19 - 157
At 31 March 2007 RZFS5+F=R=1-H = 3,180 149 8 992 764 5093
A 1 Apil 2007 A-TELEMA-B - 3180 149 8 99 764 5,093
Depreciation provided RERRERRE
for the year - 2 13 2 730 117 876
Disposals 5 - - (162) - (225) (309) (696)
Exchange realignment AR - 399 - - 97 - 496
At 31 March 2008 RZEENE=A=1-H = 3599 = 10 1,594 566 5769
Net book values RE#E
At 31 March 2008 R-RENF=A=1-A - 218 - 26 2320 370 2,934
At 31 March 2007 R-FELE=A=1-R - m 13 1 1236 289 1751
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group's leasehold land and buildings are situated
in the PRC held under long term land use rights. As the
prepaid land lease payment cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease
payment is included in the cost of land and buildings
as a finance lease in property, plant and equipment in
accordance with HKAS 17.

The Group's motor vehicle at the carrying amount of
HK$519,000 (2007: nil) has been pledged to a financial
institution to secured the obligation under a finance lease.

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

14. ¥ -BERKRE (&)

AEBZHEETHEEFURPERK
NEHTwERERSE - dRANE
G+ 3 RIE A RERS i M AE T Al 5
okt Rt MEERBAREETE
SEHERFITRIEDE - BB L& B
ZREHSERRRLIHWEBFRAZ
A o

REBEREEA519,0008 T (Z 2
+tE T)MIEEEFF &R
M EARBHREREETZER-

Furniture
Leasehold and
improvements fixtures Total
HEMELE HBAREE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FHET
THE COMPANY ¥ YN
Cost 2N
At 1 April 2006 and RZZEZERFMNA-—B R
31 March 2007 —ETE+F=HA=+—H 162 467 629
Additions i - 153 153
Disposals e (162) (313) (475)
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENF=A=1+—H - 307 307
Depreciation and amortisation ER#E
At 1 April 2006 RZZEZERFHA—A 118 382 500
Depreciation provided for the year AFE I TERE 31 70 101
At 31 March 2007 RZEZT+LF=H=+—H 149 452 601
At 1 April 2007 R_ZEZ+FMA—H 149 452 601
Depreciation provided for the year AFEE I TEBE 13 23 36
Disposals tE (162) (309) (471)
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENF=A=+—H - 166 166
Net book values REFEE
At 31 March 2008 R-ZBENF=ZR=+—8 - 141 141
At 31 March 2007 RZZEE+LF=A=+—H 13 15 28
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

15. REW

THE GROUP
REE
2008 2007
—EBENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
At beginning of the year F1 - 15,324
Disposal of subsidiaries HERE R - (5,520)
Reclassified to other E%ﬁ’\*ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬂ

receivables (note 22(b)) FE W BRIE (H72£22(b)) - (10,249)
Exchange realignment bE 54, 58 B - 445
At end of the year FHR - -

During the year ended 31 March 2003, a receivable of
approximately HK$10,166,000 was settled by a transfer
of a block of industrial building to the Group at a fair
value of HK$10,166,000. In prior years, the Group held
this property as security for the receivable and regarded
it as an investment property. However, the transfer of the
legal ownership of the property has not been completed
since then. During the year ended 31 March 2007, the
directors are of the opinion that the carrying value of this
investment property (approximately HK$10,249,000)
should be reclassified to other receivables (Note 22(b)).

N-_ZTEZE=ZF=ZA=+—HILEFE "
—IE4910,166,0007% JT K & Uk BR 18 LA
#E—1E Y {EA10,166,000/8 7T 2
TERETAEEEREN -RBX
FE ASEREZVMEERZE
WERTER AR - WHEREMZE - A
m MEEACHEBEZEZESHAR
TR o -R-ZTETELF=-A=+—HL
FE EFRA/AULKEMELREE
B (#9510,249, oooﬁén)r%é%ﬁ Sol |
A H At fE U BR 1B (BFEE22(b))

16. GOODWILL 16. B &

HK$'000
TAET

Cost A
At 1 April 2006 and 1 April 2007 RZZEZERFHNA-—BR-_ZETLFMHA—H -
Arising on acquisition of subsidiaries T R BT /BB 1 B BRE R A 7,395
Currency realignment BEE SR R & 110
At 31 March 2008 R-FZNF=A=+—8 7,505

Goodwill is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units
(CGUs) identified according to country of operation and
business segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

16. GOODWILL (continued)

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or
more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined
from value in use calculations. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculations are those regarding
the discount rates, growth rates and expected changes
to selling prices and direct costs during the period.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates
that reflect current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the CGUs. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts. Changes in
selling prices and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market.

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

16. & (&)

AEBEBFRANRBTIEEA R
H BB E R - RISE 38 o TTOREDR
E:_Et o

AREMREELESBNESREENAE
EREEMEE AEEAEEMK
AzEBBRIRHAZSZHRE IR
R BREXR -EEMEERRANZEGF
2 EEENAARRTISHER
EMEBEELHEURESELEM
Z 45 B B B BR B AT EE 3K 2R A AT R
RBR -BRIRAZITEERAHNSE
- EBRERRAZBE NILBHE
BHIRERMIS RN E B SEE -

17. R B QR 2 &

THE COMPANY

¥ /N
2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET

Unlisted shares, at cost JEETRRG - RKAE - -
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUBTE A FFIE 941,868 331,601
Allowance for impairment BER (287,229) (287,229)

654,639 44 372
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERT B B A B IR (438,221) (12,743)

216,418 31,629

The Company's cost of investments in the unlisted shares
of its directly held subsidiaries is in aggregate less than
HK$1,000.

ARRIRNEEZRFANKBRRZIF
£ B A7 4% & AR AN 42 FE A 70 1,00078
7T|:O
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

17.

18.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Amounts due from (to) subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayment. In
the opinion of the directors, the amounts will not be
repayable within twelve months of the balance sheet date
and are accordingly classified as non-current.

In view of the subsidiaries which sustained losses and
had poor operating performance, not financially capable
of repaying to the Company, the directors opined that
it is appropriate to make an allowance for impairment
of HK$287,229,000 (2007: HK$287,229,000) after
considering the profitability, financial positions, cash flows
and future prospects of these subsidiaries.

Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31
March 2008 are set out in note 46.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

Share of net assets EREEFE

Amounts due from associates JE W Bt & R B IR
less impairment losses B EET 1R

Eliminated on disposal of 5 Bt B A B Re BUE

subsidiaries

17.

18.

REBLQTE 2 EHE (&)

FEU (<) Bt /B8 2 Bl 2 FIR B K
BEMNENBEEESRR -EFRR
BERBEIENEERET+ A
NER- - At ZFRHECHBERIE
MBEE °

ENZEWNBRARBERGSEERER
BERARE WEMBREREE
RTFARA Bl EEEZEZRE
MEArzBFeen - BBk -
BERE RKRASERBEZIE
287,229,000 L (Z T T £ F :
287,229,000 7T ) 2 BB & ©

ARBZETEMNBRAR _ZTZENF
= A=1T—BZ#FBIEHNHE46 -

REt&E NTF 2R
THE GROUP
rEE

2008 2007
—EENE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AT
- 1,871
- 161
- (2,032)

The amounts due from associates were unsecured and
non-interest bearing. In the opinion of the directors, the
amounts due from associates would not be repayable
within one year of the balance sheet date and were
accordingly classified as non-current.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

BRRANBURE B 1R Bk 2
BINE ETIRARE 75

Unlisted equity securities in
overseas, at cost less
impairment losses

BA TSR R B aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

19. THESHEE

THE GROUP
FHRE
2008 2007
—BENEFE | —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAET
666 12,852

Details of the Group’s investments in unlisted equity
securities included above disclosed pursuant to section
129(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:

FRBERBRBERREHFE129(1)
BB AEB 2 LMBFREF
BT -

Proportion of
nominal value of

Effective

Place of issued share capital/ proportion of issued

incorporation/ registered capital share capital/registered

Name of investee operations held by the subsidiaries capital held by the Group
MR R A rEERKE

ML BRITRE BRTRE/

ERENAEH EEME it & AR EE L AMmERERLL A
LismBEER T2 PRC/PRC 45% 22.95%

REBERATA R, T E

The above company is not regarded as an associate of
the Group because the Group has no significant influence
over its affairs.

The directors consider that the above financial assets are
worth at least their carrying values.

FRARBAEABRAEE 2B E R
8 ARAASEHEXBESE K7,

I

o

g

EERSLtieREEELHEENE
ERER

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

20.DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION OF 20. BB AR 2 &S
SUBSIDIARIES
The amount at 31 March 2008 represented the deposits R_ZEZNEF=ZA=1T—BZ&H "
and partial consideration paid for the acquisition of ARBEEEBEEHERTEARA
the entire equity interests in EEMHEMEREE AREERLEEXAEREEAA
PRA7R] (Chongging Sunrise Property Development HkEs R RBHRE - KB
Company Limited) and EER AT EXEREIT AT AEMRRAZREDRBARE
(Chongging Feng Hong Ji Enterprise Company Limited). 45,000,0007T & A K #25,000,000
The considerations for the acquisition of these two T MRARERAEEEREME
companies are RMB45,000,000 and RMB25,000,000 BEE - R-_ZEZENE=A=+—80"
respectively. Both companies are engaged in property WHE R AT - R P Z7F1E 2 Al5IH
development in Chongging, the PRC. The acquisitions RARFRZZEZLE+ AT NBZ
are not yet completed as at 31 March 2008. Details NRERZZEZNFE-AN\BZ@ENK -
of the transactions were set out in the Company's BARASE 2 FHITHI BN E38 o

announcement dated 18 December 2007 and circular
dated 8 January 2008 respectively. Details of the capital
commitment were set out in note 38.

21.INVENTORIES 21. 78§
THE GROUP
REE
2008 2007
—BEN\F ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Building materials FEEEM K 977 1,501
Properties held for sale BIEHEME 5,735 5,093
6,712 6,594
Included in properties held for sale amounting to Fr{EH & ¥ ¥ 8 185,735,000% 7T (=
HK$5,735,000 (2007: HK$5,093,000) were properties T Z 4 : 5,093,000 7T) 1 A] B IR
carried at net realisable value. The remaining inventories FEIENYE  EATEARKAER
were carried at cost. B8R -

100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

22. ERE Z K H M iRE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
REE ¥ /N
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EEN\F | —ZZTTLF | ZBEENF | 2T tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FET FET FET
Trade receivables eI E 5 ER1E 4,537 5,405 - -
Less: allowance for B REREAE
doubtful debts 2,940 2,032 - -
Trade receivables, net  EUWE 5 REFE 1,597 3,373 - -
Other receivables H b pE BRI K
and prepayments T8 T I8 43,761 125,259 224 52,117
45,358 128,632 224 52,117

All of the above trade and other receivables are expected
to be recovered or recognised as expense within one
year.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade
and other receivables approximate to their fair values.

The Group allows an average credit period of 60 days to
90 days to its trade customers. The ageing analysis of the
Group's trade receivables, based on the invoice date and
net of allowances, is as follows:

LB RWE 5 N HBRIARA A
R—FRAYEAERRER -

EERARKESREMKREZRA
BEERAXFEBE -

AEBGETHEESEFPFINF60R
EOBEZEEHR AEEERER
HI RN B AR < B E 5 RA MR
oM e

THE GROUP
rER

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAT
Up to 30 days 308 A 572 610
31 to 90 days 31&290H 348 679
91 to 365 days 91&365H 677 1,071
Over 365 days H#Bi\365H - 1,013
1,597 3,373

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 22. BEWEB S R E#MBRIE (&)

The movements on the allowance for doubtful debts are REBEZEHHNOT
as follows:
THE GROUP
AEE
2008 2007
—EBEENE —EELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FBIT
At 1 April AN A—H 2,032 2,638
Impairment loss recognised B HERKRERE 908 606
Unused amounts reversed BEIREREEE - (1,212)
At 31 March R=A=+—H 2,940 2,032

At 31 March 2008, trade receivables of HK$2,940,000
(2007: HK$2,032,000) were impaired. The amount of
allowance for impairment was HK$2,940,000 as at 31
March 2008 (2007: HK$2,032,000). The individually
impaired receivables mainly related to a number of
customers that were in financial difficulties and have
remained long overdue.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are
considered to be impaired is as follows:

R-ZEZFENF=ZA=+—8 Bl
2 5 B8R 1E2,940,0008 T (Z T T+
% : 2,032,000 ) HBHEKE R
—TETZNFE=ZA=t+—HZREE
1% 52,940,000 T (Z T T+ F :
2,032,000/ 7T) © & Al Rk 18 &9 FE U 5%
H TESRBERFRBAMBEEH
RRHERAK -

RRATHEREKEZRARERD
FranT

THE GROUP
REE

2008 2007
—EBENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
Less than 6 months past due BER D 61E A 168 35
6 months to 1 year past due BERGME A =14 140 237
1 year to 2 years past due WA E2F 1,196 1,760
Over 2 years past due B ERER R 2 F 1,436 -
2,940 2,032
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

22. ERE Z R HEMARE (&)

REEBREZEKE SRBERE D
o

THE GROUP
EHE

2008 2007
—BENF —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Not yet past due i AR 180 HA 403 84
Less than 6 months past due BE L 61E A 761 1,548
6 months to 1 year past due BERGME A =14 433 901
1 year to 2 years past due WA E2F - 840
1,597 3,373

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the fair value of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances. All of the other
classes within trade and other receivables are neither past
due nor impaired with good credit quality.

Included in trade and other receivables is the following

amount denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Company to which they relate:

Renminbi AR

RBEBHMAERZ ZGeEERR
RLERBKREZREAEZAFE AR
B3 Wl F AR A AR mX
HitEMEE AN EEERR
WA EMEKRE S REMEREAR S
BatEFRE -

W E 5 N H AR B B35 T 5 3F
NARB 2N EE REM 28R

THE GROUP
FHRE
2008 2007
—BENEFE | _—TTLHF
'000 '000
T T
26,765 7,874

g E AR A 2008 F3R

103



104

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

22.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

As at 31 March 2008, the other receivables and
prepayments included an amount of approximately
HK$24,288,000 (2007: nil) mainly paid to a local village
committee in Huairou District of Beijing for the first level
of land development on certain areas of Huairou District
of Beijing (“the Lands”). Such land development works
included the removal of the existing buildings situated
on the Lands, the relocation of the existing residents, the
provision of infrastructure systems including roads, drainage
system, water pipes, gas and electricity supply and the
construction of public facilities. The land development is
in connection with the Group's acquisition of 100% equity
interest in ItREREREIZABR AR (Beijing De Bang
Fu Strategic Consultancy Company Limited) which, through
its indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary, dtF & EH
EM#EAFR AT (Beijing Yo Luan Property Development
Company Limited), possesses the right to redevelop a site
area of 51,240 square meters on the Lands (see also note
33).

As at 31 March 2007, other receivables and prepayments
included an amount of approximately HK$36,081,000
placed with a company which is an independent third
party, for securities trading and other investment purposes.
The amount is unsecured, interest free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 March 2007, an amount approximately of
HK$10,249,000 has been reclassified from investment
properties (note 15) to other receivables. In the opinion of
the directors, due to the failure to transfer the legal title of
the property to the Group after several years, full allowance
for impairment of this receivable has been charged to the
income statement during the year ended 31 March 2007.
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22. EREZ REMIRE (&)

Hrat -

(a)

(b)

R-TBENE=ZA=+—08 H
thEKEBERENREBSEN A
24,288,000 T (=TT +F : F) -
FERFFARTERFEEHZNER
ZEg ARILEETIERES T
B ([ZLtHb]) 1T — AR L FA 3% -
ZtHAEIRBREER& L E
WEEEEY BEFTEREER
REEBIERF (BIEER - HK
R KB BEREOHEERERZE
ANFEEHE) o B4 Hb B B K £ H U
BIRERETREERNERRAFZ
100%% # A B8 + 1t A 5 #& E 3k
2EBENNBRARILL AR E i
ERZEERARERGH51,240F
ARz EEER (BREZ
BRI 7E33) ©

R_ZEELF=ZA=+—8 Hfb
FE U BR 18 2 TR 1~ SR I 4936,081,0007%
TERR—BBLE=F2a A
EBELSEEREMIKERS - %X
HBEER - &R S RAREREE -

R-BELE=A=+—H0" %
10,249,000/ T IR E Y X E 1 5
fEAEMmEWKEEE (KiE5) - EF
RE BREFEAECEEZME
CECHERETASEE  LWEHER
REZ28REBEEREE_Z
ELE=ZFA=+—"BLEEEINALK
R e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A RS 4R R B aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2. B AFESFTAERZERMEE

THE GROUP
rER
2008 2007
—BENF —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET
Listed securities held for trading: RIEEE 2 ETESH .

— Equity securities — Hong Kong —BRAEEBH-BH 33,207 40,501
— Equity securities — Overseas —RARFEZF— 8o 2,875 1,073
Market value of listed securities FmEEmE 36,082 41,574
None of the carrying amount of interest in listed securities REEH EhESERNKREEY

exceeded 10% of total assets of the Group at the balance TEAREEEEMLTEI0% °

sheet dates.

24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

THE GROUP
AEH
2008 2007
—EENFE | —TTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Bank balances and cash $R1T#456% IR & 130,905 177,312

2. RERBEEHEAR

THE COMPANY

AAF
2008 2007
—BENE | ZTTLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx T
9,936 176,898

EigRmEmARQ A 2008 FH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFS R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

24.CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)

2 WERBEELEHHIER (&)

Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the HEAREREREAmMES  HeLH
purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement: TEHE E BIETII&IEA
THE GROUP
rER
2008 2007
—EENF —ZTF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Bank balances and cash as RITAEBREIRE - ALt
per above 130,905 177,312
Bank overdrafts (note 27) RITEX (K15227) (2,403) (6,972)
128,502 170,340
Included in cash and cash equivalents in the balance EEABRRNRERA2ERERR

sheet are the following amounts denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the

ETIAFFUARRAB 2 EERE
(VA:OR &0

Company to which they relate:

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE ¥ /N

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE | ZTTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
‘000 '000 ‘000 '000
T Tt Fr Tt
United States Dollar E7T 5 38 - =
Renminbi AR 18,278 358 - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

BA TSR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

25. BN E Z K HMiRE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
XEHE ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EENE | ZTTLF | ZBENF | ZTTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FERT FAT
Trade payables e B 5 AR1E 1,008 1,620 - -
Retention payables JEHR BB AR 18 - 28 - -
Other payables and HoAth fE 1~ AR TE K2

accruals FEATEIR 24,042 19,238 5,542 6,021
25,050 20,886 5,542 6,021

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be
settled or recognised as income within one year or are
repayable on demand.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade
payables approximates to their fair value.

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade payables is as

MEBEZMEMENERERFN —F
AN ERBRBWALIZERMNE -

EER/ERNEZRACKMERR
NFEBE -

AEBEENEZRAZREDHAOT :

follows:
THE GROUP
rEER

2008 2007
—EENF —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT THET
Up to 30 days 30BN 215 213
31 to 90 days 31290H 608 582
Over 90 days #8890 H 185 825
1,008 1,620

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

25.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

Included in trade and other payables is the following
amount denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Company to which they relate:

Renminbi AR

25. ENEZ REMIRE (&)

ENEZMEMKRERRE T IEAR
NAZNEEE REMOEE

THE GROUP
FHE
2008 2007
—BENF | _—TTLHF
'000 '000
T T
14,503 12,832

26. AMOUNT DUE TO A MINORITY
SHAREHOLDER OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to a minority shareholder of a subsidiary
is unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand.

27. BANK BORROWINGS

26. ERMIB AR 2 BRRFIE

N —EHRBARZ — B BRER
BEEEER . BN MR ERBERE -

27. BITEE

THE GROUP THE COMPANY
AEM ¥ NN
2008 2007 2008 2007
—EENE | ZFTLF | ZEENF | ZZETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FAET FHET
Current B
Bank borrowings RITIEE
— secured - A 396 354 - —~
— unsecured — EH R 34,406 36,489 - =
Bank overdrafts RITEX
- secured (note 24) - HIRIF (HfiE24) 2,403 6,972 - -
Total borrowings fEE#EE 37,205 43,815 - -

As at 31 March 2008 the average effective interest rate of
the bank borrowings is approximately 8.41% p.a. (2007:
7.37% p.a.).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
B 5 $R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

27. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

28.

The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in

27. RITHEE (&)

BENERAEATIEE /I RE

the following currencies: iz :
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
rEE PN
2008 2007 2008 2007
ZBENF | —TTLF | ZBENF | _TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FAET TR FH&T
Hong Kong Dollar BT 2,403 7,133 - -
Renminbi ARE 34,406 36,489 - -
Euro BT - 65 - -
Japanese Yen S - 128 - —
United States Dollar ETT 396 - - -
37,205 43,815 - —
OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE 28. RIEHERAIE
THE GROUP rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Amount payable under a ENTREMEE IR -
finance lease:
Within one year —FR 536 -
Less: Future finance charges /& @ RRBERH 11 -
Present value of lease HEEBNZRE
payments 525 =

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

28.

29,

OBLIGATION UNDER A FINANCE LEASE

(continued)

The Group leases a motor vehicle under finance lease
arrangement. At the end of the lease term the Group
has the option to purchase the motor vehicle at a price
deemed to be a bargain purchase option. As at 31 March
2008, the effective borrowing rate was 6.2% p.a. (2007:
nil). The lease is on a fixed repayment basis and no
arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental
payments.

The Group's obligation under a finance lease is secured
by the lessor's charge over the leased asset.

THE COMPANY
The Company has no obligation under finance lease for
both of the year end dates.

DEFERRED TAXATION

At 31 March 2008, the Group has unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$257,701,000 (2007: HK$214,907,000),
part of which has not yet been agreed with the Hong
Kong Inland Revenue Department, available for offset
against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The balance of
unutilised tax losses does not expire under the current tax
legislation.

At 31 March 2008, the Group has other deductible
temporary differences of approximately HK$468,000
(2007: HK$624,000) in respect of allowance and
impairment losses recognised. No deferred tax assets has
been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary
differences as it is not probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. These deductible temporary
differences do not expire under the current tax legislation.

|| PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008

28.

29.

mEEEREE)

AEEREREHELHER W
BE-REEHRE AEEAEEE
NEENERBEZIE R_ZZT
NE=ZA=1T—H BEREFRNXE
FHXRe2E(ZFFLF F)-H
ERBEEEENANRER AR
EHRHE

HEAAEBEERERERAE
BETHEBAMEMRNAEZEM -

AT
ARBRMESFE B EREEEA
B -

i 3E B 1/

RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H £5H
A0 R 2R 5 A 2 R R AR 7S B 1B
#/257,701,0008 T (ZEZT L F :
214,907,000 7T) @ # D & B M K&
REAUEBRE - AR TEETEF R
Hom A RO - B R B EZ B 7S B 1R T
REEHIEEE - RBAMBEEL
ERIRIRIR TG A B M AR B A o
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P MR R MR E R 1B 2 Bt A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

with the then existing ordinary shares in all respects.

REEE & RRE

S
BAF5 R R P s
For the year ended 31 March 2008 ol |
BE-BT F=A=t AILEE E
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. iR
Note Number of shares Amount
B aE RHEE K]
HK$'000
FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each: FREE.OVET . Bl
Authorised: ETE
At 1 April 2006, 31 March 2007 RZZEZERFMA—H -
and 31 March 2008 “TTHF=A=1t—Hk
—EENFE=FB=1+—H 15,000,000,000 150,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
At 31 March 2006 RZZEERF=ZA=1+—H 351,186,298 3,512
Issue of shares on private placement ~ UFLAB &R X E1TRM 70,000,000 700
Issue of shares on share subscription — IARREERR (D 5 A BT 90,000,000 900
Exercise of share options iy 2,500,000 25
At 31 March 2007 RZZET+F=A=+—H 513,686,298 5,137
Exercise of share options SRy (a) 20,700,000 207
At 31 March 2008 RZZEENF=A=+—H 534,386,298 5,344
Note: HaE
(@) On 5 November 2007 and 13 November 2007, the (@ RZZEZ+tF+-—HARARAK=Z
subscription rights attaching to 20,000,000 and 700,000 +F+—H+=H ' 20,000,000/ &
share options were exercised at the exercise prices of 700,0000% 2 HE AR AT - DRI A &
HK$0.323 and HK$0.27 per share respectively, resulting in f%0.323% Jt R0.278 LK FT(E (B -
the issue of a total 20,700,000 shares of HK$0.01 each B F B 1T 8 0% 19 8 £ &20,700,000
and new share capital of HK$207,000 and share premium % - SRR EEO0.01% T @ # I Ik
of HK$6,442,000, together with a release of the share K &207,0008 0 MR HD R E S
options reserve amounting to HK$3,091,000 which is 6,442,000/ T * & [F B8 B #E 1 B
credited to the share premium account (note 32). Details 3,091,000% 7T + # 5 A BR 17 4 (B B8R
of options outstanding and movements during the year are (M5E32) - RFEEANBRT 2 BRE
set out in note 31. REZFFE - RHE3 -
All the ordinary shares issued during the year rank pari passu ENEET Z}Sﬁﬁ i LHX %j‘jﬁgﬁiiﬁ

g E AR A 2008 F3R | |



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 24 April 2002, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “2002 Scheme") which will expire on 23
April 2012 for the primary purpose of providing incentives
to directors, eligible employees and consultants. Under
the 2002 Scheme, the board of directors of the Company
may at its discretion offer to any employee, including
executive directors, or consultants of the Company and/
or its subsidiaries options to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of share
options granted. Options granted should be accepted
within 30 days from the date of grant.

The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company and will not be less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant, or (iii) the
nominal value of the Company's shares.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2002 Scheme shall not exceed
10% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date
of shareholders’ approval of the 2002 Scheme, without a
prior approval from the Company's shareholders.

The maximum aggregate number of shares which may
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the 2002 Scheme
and any other schemes, must not, in aggregate, exceed
30% of the total number of shares of the Company in
issue from time to time.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the 2002 Scheme at any time after the date upon
which the option is granted and prior to the expiry of 10
years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the board of
directors in its absolute discretion, save that no option
may be exercised more than 10 years after it has been
granted. No option may be granted more than 10 years
after the date of approval of the 2002 Scheme. Subject
to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the board of directors' resolution at a general
meeting, the 2002 Scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years after the date of adoption of the
112 2002 Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares (issued and to be
issued) in respect of which options may be granted to
any eligible person in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the Company
in issue, unless a shareholders’ approval has been
obtained.

The following tables disclose details of the Company's
share options held by director, employees and consultants

and movements in the 2002 Scheme.

For the year ended 31 March 2008

31.

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

BRETEE)

RO BB RRIEN  RERM+T @
ABEARERNEEBALA FRA
ZEBREMS R ERRE T EITR
MHBE  RZITEEEARB D ETT
B An #2801% o

TREBR-_EZ-_F:tEhES -
EENRERFEE CHBREREE

218 -

BE-ZZENF=AZ=Z+—HLEE

Number of share options
EREHA
Closing
share price
Exercise Granted  Exercised Lapsed immediately
Date price Exercisable ~ Outstanding  duringthe  duringthe  during the  Outstanding before
Grantee of grant per share period  at 31.03.2007 year year year at31.03.2008 exercise date
RZERLE R-BRNE  BREAE
ZR=t-8 ZAZt-B  BEERS
BZA RiAH BRTEE i EHE WAE  ERRM  ERTE FAXN HAGE G|
HKS HK$
AT AT
Director
gz
Ho Chi Ho 06/03/2007 1122 06/03/2007- 1,500,000 = = - 1,500,000 N/A
R 05/03/2010
17/09/2007 1210 17/09/2007- - 3,600,000 = - 3,600,000 N/A
16/09/2010
Consultants
Ef
05/06/2006 0270 05/06/2006- 12,540,000 = (700,000) - 11,840,000 142
04/06/2009
11/10/2006 0323 11/10/2006- 32,600,000 - (20,000,000) - 12,600,000 1.56
10/10/2009
46,640000 3,600,000 (20,700,000) - 29540000

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HIEFE

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 31. BIRAESTE (&)
For the year ended 31 March 2007 HE-ZZLF=A=1+T—HILFE
Number of share options
BREHR
Closing
share price
Exercise Granted  Exercised Lapsed immediately
Date price Exercisable ~ Outstanding ~ duringthe ~ duringthe  duringthe  Outstanding before
Grantee of grant per share period  at 31.03.2006 year year year at31.03.2007 exercise date
RZBRAE RoBRLE  BEAE
ZR=t-8 ZR=t-B  BAMERH
BEA RiiAH BRITEE T ERR WAE  ERRE  ERTE FAXN HAGE UG
HKS HK$
AT AT
Director
g2
Ho Chi Ho 06/03/2007 1.122 06/03/2007- - 1500000 = - 1500000  N/AAER
s 05/03/2010
Consultants
EF
05/06/2006 0270 05/06/2006- - 14,040,000  (1,500,000) - 12,540,000 0.650
04/06/2009
11/10/2006 0323 11/10/2006- - 33,600,000  (1,000,000) - 32,600,000 0.780
10/10/2009
- 49,140,000  (2,500,000) - 46,640,000

The fair value of the share options granted during the
year was HK$2,726,000 (2007: HK$7,658,000) of which
the Company recognised a share options expense of
HK$2,726,000 (2007: HK$7,658,000) during the year
ended 31 March 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

31.SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted is
estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes
option pricing model (“Model”), taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. Details of the fair values of share options

BAFE IR KRB EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HLEFE

31. BRESTE (&)

P AR AN EE 2 BB 2 FE
RIX B #AME e — &F B AT (EHE
A (TRAD EE YEZEBREER
R R - BRABREER R
BHUZBEABEZAFERAEEX

determined at the date of grant using the Model with BERBLEMEBNT
significant variables and assumptions are as follows:

Date of share options grant

BRERL A
05.06.2006 11.10.2006 06.03.2007  17.09.2007
TEEXRE ZEERE ZZ2TtF —ETtHE
AAEH TA+-H =AXB hAt+tH
HK$0.270  HK$0.323  HK$1.122  HK$1.210
Exercise price 1168 02707 03238 112287 12108

Dividend yield R 87| & 0% 0% 0% 0%

Expected volatility TEER R 12 91.17% 92.67% 80.01% 71.77%
Risk-free interest rate B M 4.273% 3.804% 3.973% 3.856%
Expected life of option HHRBER 2 years 2 years 3 years 3 years
25 g 3% 3%

Closing share price at grant date ~ #{H B RGO YT E HK$0.255  HK$0.305  HK$1.080  HK$1.410
0.255%8 7T 0.305% 7T 1.080/8 7T 1.41047T

The expected volatility, which is based on the approximate EHPE R 2R AN I RN EEHE 1

historical volatility of closing prices of the share of the
Company in the past one year immediately before the
date of grant, reflects the assumption that the historical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome. The risk fee rate
represents the yields to maturity of respective Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Note as at the share options grant date.
The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of exercise patterns
that may occur.

No other features of options grant were incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 29,540,000
(2007: 46,640,000) share options outstanding under
the 2002 Scheme which represented approximately
5.53% (2007: 9.08%) of the Company's share in issue
at that date. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 29,540,000 (2007:
46,640,000) additional shares and additional share
capital of HK$295,400 (2007: HK$466,000) and share
premium of HK$13,010,000 (2007: HK$15,132,000)
(before issue expenses).

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁi@?&-iZH&‘ﬁEE’\]iﬁiﬁﬁ
8 RRELKE AR RRBS
TE““ AUREBRER - EE RN X
RIEREEL B RBINEESRIE L 2
B - BREZ AR RBERT
%EAFE“iéfﬂfﬁ;ﬂm R W [ R
AIREHHIR ZITEMEE

AERFERTEFREREZER
R H ML -

REEH BRE_SZT_F318
VNN ﬁ29,54o,oooﬂx (ZEZE+
F : 46,640,0000% ) & 17 { B8 M 4% -
MAANRRZBPEBETHRAY
553% (ZZFZ+ % : 9.08%) ° fii:%
EHRTHBREERKITE  BHARQA
EEHSZJS E1g - % & $29,540,000/%
(ZZEZ+ F : 46,640 oooﬂx) aﬁ&\\
BT REEINK $295 400,% 7T (=
T F : 466 ooo;’éﬁ)&aﬁﬁl\ﬂxf’ﬁ
{813,010, oooﬁ%n (ZEZELF:
15132000,%75)(5&% REEITER) o
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B F5 R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_T
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EAE=ZA=+—HIFE
32. OTHER RESERVES 32. Hftbf#
THE GROUP &
Capital Share
redemption options  Exchange Special ~ Contributed
reserve reserve feserve reserve surplus Total
e
Fofie REERE EXRE  BARE  AARR - H)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TEn TEn TEnL TR T
Balance at 1 April 2006 RZZENFNA-B 2R 13,878 - - 78176 684966 777020
Share options granted RiLERE - 7658 - - - 7658
Transfer on exercise of share options W7 (TR 82 - (337) - - - (337)
Curreny translation differences EiZEH - - (337) - - (337)
Balance at 31 March 2007 WERLE=A=t-Az&# 13,878 7321 (337) 78176 684966 784,004
Share options granted RiliRE - 2726 - - - 2726
Transfer on exercise of share options 7R EREE - (3,001) - - - (3001)
Currency translation differences EXEE - - (162) - - (162)
Balance at 31 March 2008 RZZE\F=A=t-HzE&8 13,878 6,956 (499) 78176 684,966 783,477

The contributed surplus of the Group represents
the cancellation of an amount of approximately
HK$48,000,000 from the share premium account of the
Company and the credit of an amount of approximately
HK$610,247,000 of the Company's share capital
cancelled in 2002 and the contribution of approximately
HK$26,719,000 from the placing of warrants in 2002 that
were expired in 2003.

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the share capital issued
by the Company in exchange for the nominal amount of
share capital of its subsidiaries acquired at the date of a
previous group reorganisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

32. OTHER RESERVES (continued)

HE-_ZZNF=ZA=+—HILFE

B TSR R B aE .

For the year ended 31 March 2008 i 4

32. Hftf# i (&)

THE COMPANY RAT
Share Capital Share
premium redemption Contributed  options Accumulated
account  reserve  surplus  reserve losses Total
EXRE
R RER fiff  BABB BRERKE ZHRE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK'000 HK$'000
TAL THAT THT TiEx TAL TAL
Balance at 31 March 2006 RIETREZA
o = 3 481,286 13,878 907,760 - (1,240,026) 162,898
Issue of shares ki 102,260 - - - - 102,260
Shares issue expenses R b (279) - - - - (279)
Share options granted RitiERE = - - 7658 - 7658
Exercise of share options TEERE 703 - - - - 703
Transfer on exercise of share options ~ FMTFEBRER &3 337 - - (337) - -
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - (23726)  (23726)
Balance at 31 March 2007 S
=t-H2 &S 584,307 13878 907760 7321 (1263752) 249514
Share options granted RitiERE - - - 2,726 - 2,726
Exercise of share options T iaiRE 6,442 - = = = 6,442
Transfer on exercise of share options ~ FMTEBRER &z 3,091 - - (3,091) - -
Loss for the year rEERR - - - - (42849)  (42,849)
Balance at 31 March 2008 RZZZ\F=R
=t—Rz&% 593,840 13,878 907,760 6,956 (1,306,601) 215,833

The share options reserve represents the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised. The
amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised, or be
transferred to accumulated losses should the related

option expire or be forfeited.

BRERBAERABHRREKITE L
BRENRTE - EERBRERET
s HEESIARMDEER X
26 BRI R S i BUR B - 851
EREHEIR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

32. OTHER RESERVES (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents:

(i) the difference between the consolidated
shareholders’ funds of the subsidiaries at the date
on which they were acquired by the Company, and
the nominal value of the Company's shares issued
for the acquisition at the time of a previous group
reorganisation; and

(i) the cancellation of an amount of approximately
HK$48,000,000 from the share premium account
of the Company and the credit of an amount of
approximately HK$610,247,000 of the Company's
share capital cancelled in 2002.

(iii) the contribution of approximately HK$26,719,000
from the placing of warrants in 2002 that were
expired in 2003.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended), the contributed surplus account of the
Company is available for distribution. However, the
Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a
distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company's assets would
thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium
account.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company had no
reserves available for distribution to shareholders at 31
March 2007 and 31 March 2008.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

In January 2008, the Group completed the acquisition of
the entire equity interest in It REHEREERHERA
7] (Beijing De Bang Fu Strategic Consultancy Company
Limited), which has 90% direct equity interest in it
RERREMEMRZEABRAGF (Beijing Ju Din Yuen
Property Development Company Limited), and 90%
indirect equity interest in JtRABEHEMRZERA
A] (Beijing Yo Luan Property Development Company
Limited) for a cash consideration of RMB2,000,000.
Details of the transactions were set out in the Company’s
announcement and circulars dated 2 October 2007 and
23 October 2007 respectively. The acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method.

Details of aggregate net liabilities acquired and goodwill
are as follows:

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

33. WEEKHEB A F

RZEENF— A AEBETKKE
IR EHEREERAERARIZEE
R ZARFEILRESREMHE
FI 3 AR A A Z900%E & ki - &dt
R HE Bt EE B A PR A §] 2 90%MH
%%% ReRER/ARME2,000,000

RGZHABOANEINR=_TE L
¢+ﬂ ARZZETLF+A=Z+=

BARQ “i& Mo BENED IR
W i 5% 5 AR

PrkERBEFRMNEEFRET

HK$'000

FET

Purchase consideration settled in cash AR & Xtz WENRE 2,172
Fair value of net liabilities acquired FriiEaEEE s

— shown as below NRBE-27WT 5,223

Goodwill S 7,395

The goodwill is attributable to the anticipated
profitability and future development of the acquirees
and the anticipated future operating synergy from the
combinations.

AR NS NI A G &
RARRER  ARZRAEHBRHMEL
LR RAEE W [R) RLE o
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For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

33. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

33. WIBK B2 R (&)

The aggregate assets and liabilities arising from the HZWEMGZBEERBGELT
acquisitions are as follows:
Acquirees’
carrying amount
WUWEE A R Z BREE
HK$'000
FHET
Property, plant and equipment MR - BB K& E 292
Other receivables e U B fib BR 18 17,801
Bank balances and cash IRTTAEMRNEIRE 31,281
Other payables HAhARIA (54,597)
Net liabilities acquired BAZAESERE (5,223)
Purchase consideration settled in cash ~ WUIRE& S ZEEKE (2,172)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BAReKREE 31,281
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition — WiEEZ W E| 2 R & /F58 29,109

The subsidiaries acquired during the year contributed
revenue of HK$18,000 and loss of HK$627,000 to the
Group for the period from 1 February 2008 to 31 March
2008.

The subsidiaries acquired during the year did not have
any significant turnover and loss for the year. If the
acquisition had occurred on 1 April 2007, total group
revenue and loss for the year would not be significantly
different from those shown in the consolidated income
statement on page 37.

There were no acquisitions in the year ended 31 March
2007.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'I{S

34. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group
disposed of its subsidiaries, Huey Tai Holdings Limited,
Bestcreate Investments Limited and Gold Method
Consultants Limited.

The aggregate net assets at the date of disposals were as
follows:

B PSSR T Bl & .

For the year ended 31 March 2008 e ¥
RE-FE\F=A=t AL%E “‘#

34. HEKH B2 F

B2 ZZ+HF=HA=+—HIt&F
B AEBHEERNBRAERIE
fi% & PR /A &) - Bestcreate Investments
Limited % Gold Method Consultants
Limited °

REERRZAEEFEFHIWT

2008 2007
—EBEN\F —ZTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FAT
Aggregate net assets disposed of: BHZREERE :
Investment properties REMZE - 5,520
Interests in associates N AN o ey - 2,032
Properties held for sale REHEMS - 2,860
Other receivables JrE Uk L b BR T8 - 34,554
Bank balances and cash RITAEBR KRS - 98
Bank borrowings RITEE - (1,791)
- 43,273
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENE QTR - 18,080
Considerations RE - 61,353
Satisfied by: AR
Other borrowings and interest RRHEMEE
payable discharged JE A2 - 28,553
Cash He - 32,800
- 61,353
Net cash inflow arising from disposal: HEEEZIRERAFE
Cash consideration BeRE - 32,800
Bank balances and cash disposed of & HiE1T&A KIS - (98)
Net inflow of cash and cash HEME QA
equivalents in respect of the EEHeREE
disposal of subsidiaries FHEABRAFR - 32,702 121
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 5 R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

34.

35.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The subsidiaries disposed of during the year ended 31
March 2007 contributed approximately HK$56,000 to the
Group's turnover and loss of approximately HK$411,000
to the Group's loss from operations for the year then
ended.

DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As explained in note 45 to the financial statements, the
Group has commenced legal proceedings for the recovery
and declaration of its beneficial ownership in 51% of
the issued share capital of Gold United International
Industries Limited (“Gold United"), which has 80% direct
equity interest in AUMNEEBRAZBR AT ("HZHY").
The management of HZHY has not provided the Company
with any financial information subsequent to the provision
of unaudited management financial statements for the
eleven months ended 28 February 2005.

Due to the above reasons, the directors considered that
the Group was unable to exercise its rights as major
shareholder either to control the assets and operations
or to exercise significant influence over the financial and
operating policy decisions of the HZHY. As such, the
directors considered that it is inappropriate to consolidate
the financial results of HZHY into the Group. Two of the
Group's subsidiaries, Gold United and HZHY, were then
deconsolidated as of 1 April 2006.
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35. DECONSOLIDATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'{

B F5ER T MIG

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

35. BUHGAEANEMB AT (£)

(continued)
2008 2007
—EENE BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Aggregate net assets HUHARE AR @& EFE

deconsolidated:
Property, plant and equipment %13 - E k& - 64,460
Other receivables H b fE U BR IR - 4,303
Bank balances and cash RITEF MRS - 7,217
Bank borrowings HRFRIE K - (58,545)
Net assets BEFE - 17,435
Minority interests DY R R - (10,241)

- 7,194

Loss on deconsolidation of BUB%RE AR

subsidiaries =Nl SE = - (7,194)
Consideration RAE - =
Net cash outflow arising on  BUB4RE ABRELZ

deconsolidation: IR 7 SRR
Bank balances and cash BUBAR & ABRIRTT

deconsolidated HEHRERE - (7.217)
Net outflow of cash and cash EUE4R & ABRM B A 7%

equivalents in respect of MEe B e EHE

the deconsolidation of T8 B 7t SR

subsidiaries - (7,217)

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

36. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

37.

38.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group
acquired a motor vehicle amounted to HK$599,000
under a finance lease.

During the year ended 31 March 2007, the Group's
other borrowings and interest payable of approximately
HK$28,553,000 were settled by a transfer of legal and
beneficial ownership on the entire issued share capital of
Huey Tai Holdings Limited.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has no significant contingent liabilities as at
both balance sheet dates.

The Company has contingent liabilities in respect of
financial support given to certain subsidiaries which have
capital deficiency to allow them to continue as a going
concern and to meet their liabilities as and when they fall
due.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital commitments in respect of investment costs

36. TEHREXRSH

RBRE-TE\F=A=+—AILF
g AKERBUARERE HE

{599,000/ 7T Z /T E o

REBEE_TZL+F=A=+—HILF
B AEBEMERREMNFELN B
28,553,000/ 7T &L LA EE R IER
ERAREHERITRAZEERE

mEEREMmEN -

37. A AREE

RMERAER  XARLBEEFMEKR

ZEREE -

ARRRBETETHRESERZW
BRARMMBFHMAERREE  UE

BREREBERFELE  YNAEBIH

REEZEEE-

38. & A& IE

BN ERARMEREKRAZER

attributable to acquisitions of subsidiaries: HHE
THE GROUP
rEEH

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Contracted but not provided for BEAEREE 23,629 -
Authorised but not contracted for ERUEBRETA - -
23,629 =

The Company had no significant capital commitments at
both balance sheet dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as lessee

The Group made minimum lease payments of
approximately HK$2,096,000 (2007: HK$1,642,000)
under operating leases in respect of office premises
during the year.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

BA TSR R B EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

39. RFEMOZ B

AEBMEREHEA
AEBFRABRERESTEYET
URERANEERERNGR
#4 52,096,000 T (Z T T F :
1,642,000/ 7T) °

REER AKBEARTAIRELE
HAOAERKREBOMFK  HOE
m eI

THE GROUP
rEE
2008 2007
—BENF —ZTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHET
Within one year —FR 912 507
In the second to MEERF

fifth year inclusive (BEEEMSE) 36 504
948 1,011

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable
by the Group for certain of its office premises and
warehouses. Leases are negotiated and fixed for an
average term of two to three years.

The Company had no outstanding commitments under
non-cancellable operating leases at both balance sheet
dates.

REBONREAEEREETEF
BYOERREZERNES - BHTFH
MERME=F °

RREEH  KRARTERBITZDT
AT B A & T 49 HE o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TTE/AF=A=1+—HLFE

40.BANK AND OTHER FACILITIES

THE GROUP
At the balance sheet date, the Group's bank and other
facilities were secured by:

(a) The minority shareholder of Shanghai Hualong
Construction Co., Ltd, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and its affiliates had given corporate
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to Shanghai Hualong Construction
Co., Ltd..

(b) The minority shareholder (also a director) and
his spouse of Prosper City International Limited
(“Prosper City”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, pledged certain bank deposits
of approximately of HK$3,000,000 (2007:
HK$7,000,000) and issued a personal guarantee in
respect of banking facilities granted to Prosper City.

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme") for all employees in Hong Kong. The
MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Authority under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme Ordinance. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of an independent trustee.

Under the rule of the MPF Scheme, the employer and
its employees are each required to make contributions
at 5% of relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by employees. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to MPF Scheme is
to make the required contributions under the scheme.
The contributions arising from the MPF Scheme charged
to the income statement represent contributions payable
to the fund by the Group at rates specified in the rules
of the scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

41. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME (continued)

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefits schemes
operated by the PRC government. The subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their
payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to
the retirement benefits scheme is to make the required
contributions under the scheme.

42_.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Financial instruments by categories
The accounting policies for financial instruments have
been applied to the line items below:

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

41. RIKERIEHE (&)

FENBARZEE AT BB HET
ZBEREBEARBHTEIKE - %F
MEARMVAREEIEZETAD
Lo - TR AR PR AR A ET B 4E SR PABE
BHMREHRED - AKBERZEKEHN
eI —BEERREFEELEEH

55
A °

N.ERERER

(a) ZERB D Z2EWMITA
HERANTISES B TAE &5
BUREFIANT ¢

THE GROUP R
Assets at
fair value Available-
through for-sale
Loans and profit financial
receivables or loss assets Total
ENRER ZOTEGA AfHeE
RE BECEE SREE ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL FAL FAT FAL
Assets as per consolidated balance sheet ~RGAEEEERZEE
31 March 2008 RZBZN\FZA=1-H
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 19) ~ AEHESBEE (H#19) - - 666 666
Trade and other receivables (note 22) EREZREMER (Wit22) 45358 - - 45,358
Financial assets at fair value BATEIABRL
through profit or loss (note 23) TREE (H#23) - 36,082 - 36,082
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) ReRRLEBER (HH#24) 130905 - - 130,905
Total a5 176,263 36,082 666 213,011
31 March 2007 RZ2BtFZA=1-H
Available-for-sale financial assets (note 19) ~ AEHESREE (H#19) - - 12,852 12,852
Trade and other receivables (note 22) EWESREMEBE (H/722) 128,632 = = 128,632
Financial assets at fair value BRATEABRL
through profit or loss (note 23) SREE (Fit23) - 41574 - 41574
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) RERFLERER (Wit24) 171312 - - 177312
Total S 305,944 41574 12,852 360,370
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved)  42. I BB EE (&)

(a) Financial instruments by categories (continued) (a) REREDZEMIA(E)
Financial
liabilities measured
at amortised cost

R 3=R
RESHAOR
HK$'000
FHET
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet REEEEABRZEE
31 March 2008 R-EBNF=A=1+—H
Trade and other payables (note 25) NE S NMEMRE (#fiF25) 25,050
Amount due to a minority shareholder FEFTH B A Rl DB R
of a subsidiary (note 26) KA (B:t26) 12,787
Bank borrowings (note 27) RITEE (Hat27) 37,205
Obligation under a finance lease (note 28) BEMERE (B/7728) 525
Total e 75,567
31 March 2007 R-EZLH=A=1+—H
Trade and other payables (note 25) ENE S MEMRE (#fit25) 20,886
Amount due to a minority shareholder FANLTIENGIES - (8
of a subsidiary (note 26) #IE (K1:226) 5,233
Bank borrowings (note 27) RITEE (K227) 43,815
Obligation under a finance lease (note 28) BMEMERE (#1i£28) -
Total 4% 69,934
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial instruments by categories (continued)

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2. EEER &)

(a) REFEDZEMIE(E)

THE COMPANY b N/NE]
Assets at fair Available-
value through for-sale
Loans and the profit financial
receivables and loss assets Total
ERRER ZRAFEFA e
RE BEZEE SREE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TATL THET TEL
Assets as per balance sheet REEAERZEE
31 March 2008 R=2B\¥=A=1-A
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 17)  FEMHBLARZE (Hi17) 654,639 - - 654,639
Other receivables (note 22) HthWERE (#1222 224 - - 224
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) RERFLERER (Wit24) 9,936 - - 9,936
Total b 664,799 - - 664,799
31 March 2007 R-2BtFZA=1-H
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note 17) WM B RIFIE (H217) 44372 - - 44372
Other receivables (note 22) EfbElEE (Hi222) 52,117 = = 52,117
Cash and cash equivalents (note 24) RERREEBEE (Wit24) 176,898 - - 176,898
Total Lk 273,387 - - 273,387
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(a) Financial instruments by categories (continued)

2.0 ERBERE(£)
(a) BERB P z2EBMI A (E)
Financial

liabilities measured
at amortised cost

MR
HK$'000
FAT
Liabilities as per balance sheet REEEEBRZAEE
31 March 2008 R-BENF=A=t+—H
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note 17) FENMBARIRIEA (Aat17) 438,221
Other payables (note 25) HinfETRRIB (Ha225) 5,542
Total 4828 443763
31 March 2007 R=-BZtHE=A=+—H
Amounts due to subsidiaries (note 17) JERTP B R BIRIE (Hfat17) 12,743
Other payables (note 25) HAb AR (fiE25) 6,021
Total GEL] 18,764

(b) Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk arising in the normal course of its
business and financial instruments. The Group's
risk management objectives and policies mainly
focus on minimizing the potential adverse effects of
these risks on the Group by closely monitoring the
individual exposure as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 by |
REZ-FE\F=A=t-AL%E \‘

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved) 42. B SRR EE (&)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued) (b) B RAEE (Z)
(1) Market risk (1) 75 & MR
(i) Foreign exchange risk @) HIEE R B2
Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due QI\EJ—WA R AINEE A
to adverse movements in foreign exchange BN 2% E 7 EE
rates relating to investments denominated E?ﬁiﬁ?ﬂ 45 T 8
in foreign currencies. The Group's assets AT 7 EERR o AE
and liabilities are primarily denominated BErvEEEABEETEB
in Hong Kong dollars. When seeking to EITAEMEBER o WME
optimise the returns on its funds available MEHAZEEES 2O
for investments, the Group has certain WERSTS  AEFS
investments in foreign operations, whose RIINEEBRIELEE T
net assets are exposed to foreign currency HE&E - 9|\I¥fx2§?
translation risk. ,;r{ﬁ TEERTINE R E
At 31 March 2008, if Hong Kong dollars had R—_ZTEZENF=H
strengthened/weakened by 10% against the =+—H WHEITHEA
RMB, with all other variable held constant, BE¥A{E B {E10%
equity would have been approximately i fb B A B B T
HK$701,000 (2007: HK$2,159,000), lower B . BI|HE 3% 45 > ok e
or higher. 7]1] #) /701,000 7T (=
ZTEZLF :2,159,000%
JT) °
The sensitivity analysis has been R DT ThERNRE
determined assuming that the change in SNEE RSB (EREE
foreign exchange rates had occurred at the B4 WERZBAE
balance sheet date and had been applied ARERFEZSEE
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to fﬁfﬁﬁy\ﬁﬁﬁlﬂﬁ’jlﬁ
currency risk for financial instruments in REE - BEREEM
existence at that date, and that all other e (j;/\Eﬂ ) 4
variables, in particular interest rates, remain T“ S\ BE [ K 5 &) 35
constant. The changes in foreign exchange )‘5/;\52 EIE%ET—{I&J*
rate represent management's assessment HEHZHEHMBA - 'ﬁﬁ
of a reasonably possible change in foreign = EJEQI\EAEE—J -------
exchange rate at that date over the period EL (L o
until the next annual balance sheet date.
Results of the analysis as presented in taiy oM ER TR &
above represent an aggregation of the lgﬁ;‘z;ﬁilj—m@ﬂ%&
effects on each of the Group entities’ XS E (IRE A
profit or loss and equity measured in the Eﬁzmﬁ‘ﬁ%’jﬁé}ﬁ# A
respective functional currencies, translated LEEH ZEREN A
into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange M IER Y B) v
rate ruling at the balance sheet date for o —_EELFEINAM
presentation purposes. The analysis is —HERH o
prepared on the same basis for 2007. 131
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
AR TERRE= A=+ —HAILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)
(i) Interest rate risk

Except for cash and cash equivalents, the
Group has no other significant interest-
bearing assets. The Group's income and
operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Management does not anticipate
significant impact on interest-bearing assets
resulted from the changes in interest rates
because the interest rates of bank deposits
are not expected to change significantly.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is
mainly related to the Group's short term
interest-bearing bank borrowings with
floating interest rates.

Borrowings at floating interest rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed interest rates expose
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk.
Details of the Group’'s borrowings have
been disclosed in note 27.

The Group has not used any interest rate
swaps to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. In order to manage the cash flow
interest rate risk, the Group will repay the
corresponding borrowings when it has
surplus funds.

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for the floating rate bank
borrowings at the balance sheet date. For
floating rate bank borrowings, the analysis is
prepared assuming the amount of liabilities
outstanding at the balance sheet date was
outstanding for the whole year.

PREMIUM LAND LIMITED Annual Report 2008

N.FEERER (&)

(b) MBEBEE (&)
(1) 1585 (f‘)

(i) ME
ﬁffﬁi&fﬁ/\”ﬁ% ’
AREEYEFMEKRZ
AAREE - AKREMNK
ARKEEREREENR
EAE TSR R & B A
T MIEJEJ\'IT?EHE

FEEKWE =58
TERFIEEBTA -

AEEHGCREESRE
MEREREEYLIR
FBF R B ZAKE
RHETRRITIEE -

FENEBEECAEH

EBHReRENER
B o EREBEFAEH
EAHAFEFERR -
ERAAEEEBE 2
B EREATBERE
B 27 55 -

AN £ 18 3 4% 5] AL AE fa] A
I J B DA S0 P ARCHE 2
MEERE - REHRES
mMEMNERE  AEE
HEARRESZEBEN
TMEEMEEER -

AT BRERE D TIRE
BERZEBRITEEZ
MERBRET - 5% 8
RITIEEMS - O
BP“C%ﬁEZ*ﬁ
BREREEFEHR

BEMETE °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (continued)

At 31 March 2008, if interest rates on
floating rate bank borrowings had been
25 basis points higher/lower with all other
variables held constant, loss for the year
would have been approximately HK$78,000
(2007: HK$93,000) higher/lower, mainly as
a result of higher/lower interest expense on
floating rate bank borrowings.

The sensitivity analysis has been prepared
with the assumption that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the
relevant financial instruments in existence
at that date. The changes in interest rates
represents management's assessment of
reasonably possible changes in interest
rates at that date over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for
2007.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities
price risk for the equity investments held by
the Group which are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Majority of the Group's equity securities are
listed on the Stock Exchange and are valued
at quoted market prices as at the balance
sheet date. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2. EEER &)

(b) B RAKEE(£)
(1) m5ERE (&)

(i) FEXRRK (&)
R=ZZEZENE = A
=+—8 " W% 8RR
BEMNERS [RIE25
BhF M FT A B Ath & HUR
BAE RFEEBEES
# 8 4978,000
BT (ZEZE £ F
93,0008 ) ' T E R
HREEEBRZHAEX
oz, md e

BB 51T DERBR
Flex@EE N EE R
HAMBE  HORZ
B PR AR 7 E 2
MeRTAMEHSE
o FIB % B B R
BEMEEZ TN —EFES

EEZHHMN EBE
BRFIBEABAL 8

BERZ A E - &AM
DNR-_ZFLFR—F
iR -

(i) B R
AASERFE 2BRAEK
BRSO EREATE
ABRCERMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ¥R R M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(1) Market risk (continued)
(iii) Price risk (continued)

Listed investments held in the financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss
portfolio have been chosen taking reference
to their long term growth potential and
returns and are monitored regularly for
performance. Given that the volatility of
the stock markets may not have a direct
correlation with the Group's investment
portfolio, it is impractical to determine the
impact that the changes in stock market
indices would have on the Group's portfolio
of equity investments.

At 31 March 2008, it is estimated that an
increase/a decrease of 10% in the market
value of the Group's financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, with all other
variables held constant, loss for the year
would decrease/increase by approximately
HK$3,608,000 (2007: HK$4,157,000). The
stated changes represent management's
assessment of reasonably possible
changes in the market value of the Group's
investment portfolio over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is prepared on the same basis for
2007.

The Company is exposed to other price risk
in respect of investments in subsidiaries.
The sensitivity to price risk in relation to
the investments in subsidiaries cannot
be reliably determined due to numerous
uncertainties regarding the future
development of these subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'lS
5 R R EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 ol |
BE-2T/\F-A=t ALFRE \‘

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continved)  42. B IS BB EIE (&)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(2) Credit risk

(b) MBEEBER (&)
) 1=EEm b

The Group's credit risk is principally attributable
to trade and other receivables and bank
balances. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. It has policies in
place to ensure that sales of products are made
and services are provided to customers with an
appropriate credit history. The customer with
sound payment history would accumulate a
higher credit limit. The Group’s other receivables
are related to the payment for first class land
development project in Beijing when the land
sites are arranged for open tender.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is
represented by the carrying amount of each
of financial assets in the consolidated balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance.
Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade
and other receivables are set out in note 22.

The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because the counterparties are reputable banks
with high quality external credit ratings in Hong
Kong and the PRC.

AEBZEERBREERS
FEW B 5 Ko B Ath AR IR LA K28R
TG AEBYESES
PZEERR - NEEHET
REZHE  ABRAES
HNEEEREZEFHEE
mn NIRRT - B EER
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BiiR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Financial risk factors (continued)
(3) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group
are responsible for their own cash management,
including the short term investment of cash
surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the parent company's board when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. Prudent liquidity risk management
implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of funding
through an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out
market positions. The Group aims to maintain
flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit
lines available and sufficient bank deposits to
meet short term cash requirements.

The following amounts are the contractual
undiscounted cash flow payments of the
Group's financial liabilities (including interest
payments) repayable within one year or payable
on demand.

2. BERRER(Z)

(b) MBEBEE (&)

G) nEBEzEE
AEBEBETEMNEERZE
B -AEBREREEE -
BRRE AR ZEHREMN
EEERUNEMNEHP 2R
EHEX EHERERER
BEZETKFE  RIZBLER
NAEFEMRETAEE -
BEEZARDECERREER
REERFABBRESLAEE
F BBRETZEEAEEE
RETEREESRBRE
AFMERB - AKEEH
BEBERFAIHEAZ DA
HEER URBESZE
A W EBFTEE ZIRITE
FoARNERRSFTE -

TNIREBERS—FREEIR
ERENRZAEESRE
B (BREMANFE) 26 K3E
BRRBEREMNK -

HK$'000
FHET
At 31 March 2008 R-Z2BNF=A=+—H
Trade and other payables ENTE 5 K E A ARIE 25,050
Amount due to a minority shareholder FERTBT B A Al 81
of a subsidiary MR 5 SRR 12,787
Bank borrowings RITEE 39,629
Obligation under a finance lease BEM S AR 536
78,002
At 31 March 2007 R-ZZBtF=A=+—H
Trade and other payables ENE 5 K EAMARIE 20,886
Amount due to a minority shareholder FERTH B R A&
of a subsidiary B3R KA 5,233
Bank borrowings RITEE 46,753
72,872
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c) Capital risk management

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can continue
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors
its capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-
adjusted capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which include trade
and other payables, bank borrowings and finance
lease obligation) less cash and cash equivalents.
Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity. The Group's policy is to keep that ratio at a
reasonable level.

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

2. EEER &)

(c) EEBER

AEENESETREHR 2R8B
¥ LR B K CF AR R 2 B R A
EEAMNAEGEXNERRE
KREAEBRSELEEEH
BEEZRN UBBRRES
KEF - FAEREEMESITS
AEYF2E o

AEEBEGHEREENEEH
BARRRE - AR GERE KRE
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IR BN A EELEARRRE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

42.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) N.VKEEARER &)

(c) Capital risk management (continued) (c) E2RBERE (&)
The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31 March RZBEENFER_ZEZELF=H
2008 and 2007 are as follows: ST HBZEBFRELAER
KRR
2008 2007
—EEN\FE —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHT
Trade and other payables I8 5 KkEMERIA 25,050 20,886
Amount due to a minority FE{HHI B R 7] &
shareholder of a PR R FRIA
subsidiary 12,787 5,253
Bank borrowings R1T1EE 37,205 43,815
Obligation under a MERERE
finance lease 525 -
Total debt B4R 75,567 69,934
Less: Cash and cash o BekIRE
equivalents E¥EIEF 130,905 177312
Net debt B E N/ATiE A N/ATE B
Adjusted capital — Total A& TR A — S
equity b 208,615 298,781
Net debt-to-adjusted B FRRL TR
capital ratio AR Atk 2 N/ATE N/AZ3E A
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are RRRISEEMM B AR ES RIS
subject to either internally or externally imposed SNSRI INEE R TEPTARR o

capital requirements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

43. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH
RELATED PARTIES

During the year, the Group had significant transactions
with the following related parties, together with balances
with them as at the balance sheet date, details of which
are as follows:

Key management compensation ALEBEFEZEFIEAS
of the Group: e
Salaries and other short-term B & E fth 72 AP
employee benefits EEBA
Share-based payments AR 7 2~ 2 RIA

TEMR
PARHAD 32 A5 2 5RI8

Substantial shareholder:
Share-based payments

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

A3 HEBEATZXERER

FA-AEBBRUTHEBEALET
EARG  WERRGEEBERNFEL
/\\Dﬁ% ;i' ;ZDT .

2008 2007
—BENE | —TTLF
HK$ HK$

BT BT
2,518 1,270
2,726 862

- 437

As stated in the announcement on 29 December 2006
and the circular dated 23 January 2007, the Company
entered into four subscription agreements with four
subscribers. The four subscribers agreed to subscribe for
90,000,000 new shares of HK$0.01 each at the price
of HK$1.00 per placing share. Each of the subscription
agreements was not interconditional on each other.
Mega Market Assets Limited, one of the subscribers, had
subscribed for 30,000,000 of the new shares. Mega
Market Assets Limited is now a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant
transactions with related parties during the year or
significant balances with them at the end of the year.

BUO—_ZEZRET_AZ+NAAZA
ERZEELF-HA+T=BZBX
Pt - 2N 5] B2 O 2 SR A T 2 15
REHZ -  ZUURBARERES
HXETEO 018 7t & #£90,000,0008% %
BRAEREEKRM1.008 T -
& ﬁu BiHnEL NERGEE - Eh—
i BB AMega Market Assets Limited
FHE30,000,0008% #1 A% ° Mega Market
Assets LimitedIR AR B2 FEZMRE o

frEMEEEIN  FALEEMES
AEALZERRGEIARANFEFLHS
B B F E A B KA

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
BE_TENE= A=+ —HIFFE

44.EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

As set out in the Company’s announcement on 6
November 2007 and its circular dated 14 December
2007, that Silver Wind International Limited (“Silver
Wind"), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
on 24 October 2007, entered into an acquisition
agreement with Stronway Development Limited
(“Stronway Development”), pursuant to which Silver
Wind has conditionally agreed to acquire from the
Stronway Development the entire equity interest in
Winmax Asia Investment Limited (“Winmax Asia”) at a
total consideration of RMB433,000,000 in cash and
two consideration villas. Winmax Asia is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Stronway Development and its principal
asset will be the entire equity interest in 1t R iZ B E i &=
3 AR AR (Beijing Jianxing Real Estate Development
Co., Ltd.) ("JXRE"), a sino-foreign co-operative joint
venture incorporated in Beijing, which is the developer of
a villa project in Beijing, the PRC.

On 15 April 2008, the Company announced that Silver
Wind decided to terminate the acquisition agreement on
the grounds that the certain material conditions under
the acquisition agreement have not been fulfilled by
Stronway Development and the JXRE's application to
relevant regulatory body in Beijing for the construction of
standalone villas was not accepted. On the same date,
Silver Wind commenced legal proceedings, through its
legal representatives, against Stronway Development for
the repayment of the deposit of RMB20,000,000 paid to
Stronway Development under the acquisition agreement.
On 6 May 2008, Silver Wind filed a Writ of Summons
in the High Court of Hong Kong against Stronway
Development. In the opinion of the directors, as the legal
proceedings are still at an early stage, the probability
of recovery of the deposit is yet to be ascertained,
nevertheless, full provision has been made for this
amount during the year ended 31 March 2008.
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GEHEHBREE

HIORRBR_ZEZELF+—HAKRH
ZRERR_ZE 7‘t¢+ A+m
BZBHAET - RZZEZTLF+ A
—+mBEARRAFZZENE R BSiver
Wind International Limited ([ Silver
Wind ]) B2Stronway Development
Limited ([ Stronway Development]) &]
V-EWERE BB RGHRE
Silver WindI 38 €433,000,0007T A
REzBEREEMRKERNEKE
Stronway DevelopmentiWinmax Asia
Investment Limited ([ Winmax Asia )
Z 2B o Winmax AsiaZStronway
Developmentz 2 BB A A - H*
ZEEHRRRNIIREREMERESR
PRAG (RIERFMK L2 —FKF I
EEME  DRFEILRZAIETRE
FERE) 2 2k o

RZZEZNFHA+HB AR
foSilver WindR E & IEFEE % - A
T 3% K Stronway Developmentﬂi
17 1% BR LB 17 o %%éﬂ%fxu&
tRRREMERERR D FER
YLEUQZEﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁﬁ’:‘it?*w%w”:&%
B2 B A - Silver Wind2 @8 H
2 Hf B B &t ¥ Stronway Development
ZIEEREF - DAIB R R UL 15 R AT
FStronway Development RBAR
# 20,000,000t 2 & - RZFZE/\
FHANA - Silver WmdﬁA?/a_ﬁi
A Bt [AIStronway Development3 i (&
Ak - EERE - ARNEERFM
FE  BERE ZEBARR - ERE
ZEETENF=ZA=1+—HLEFEE
FhAL E IR 2 BEE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEN'i'S

45.LITIGATIONS

In July 2005, the Company was notified by the Hong
Kong Companies Registry that an annual return of Gold
United International Industries Limited (“Gold United"),
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, filed in
May 2005 (“May Annual Return”) contained information,
including information relating to members and directors
of Gold United, which are significantly different from the
original annual return that was presented by the Group
on 29 April 2005.

On 13 July 2005, the Company filed a Writ of Summons
against four persons (the “Defendants”) seeking, amongst
others, declarations by the court to the effect that Winsky
Management Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, is the beneficial owner of 51% of the issued
share capital of Gold United. The Defendants were those
persons who purportedly filed the false information with
the Hong Kong Companies Registry and/or were identified
as members and directors in the May Annual Return and
other documents. Gold United is an investment holding
company holding an 80% direct equity interest in #L/H{&
BB ABRAR ("HZHY"), which is engaged in the
operation of a highway in the PRC.

The Writ of Summons was amended on 1 February 2006
and re-amended on 10 October 2006 and 12 June 2008
respectively.

As at 31 March 2008, the legal action is still proceeding
and there is no significant development.

As regards deconsolidation of Gold United and HZHY,
please refer to note 35 to the financial statements.

45.

BAFE IR R P EE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE-_ZZNF=A=1+—HILFE

4
oy

35 2

R-_ZTZTRAFLH FEAERAREME
BHAARRA  ARFIEREHB R A
THEREXERARA (B DR
ZERFRIARRAFHHX([RA
BAFEBRBR)MBEL  BEEHES
BRRLEZEZEN BAKERZ
ZERFUA-THLBERRRZREK
FFHERRBERER -

R-ZEZERFLA+=A " ARFAM
mEANEBEHEMRSHK SR (HH
BRE)EREM ARG ZEN B A A
Winsky Management Limited 4 < Bt
EBTRASI10ERZERERA °
KEARBBRAZTERAEMEZXR
EBREME/XNARBAFHRBRR
Hi X P BRI RERRREEZ A
T-2BAREERAA  HAHEMM
BEEZBREARQA ([MMNEE])
Z80%BEEEw  MMNBEEREF B
ERRNBEERE -

ZEASTHRER—_ZTZTF_A—H
il AR -_FTERNFTATHERC
ZENFRATZBDRIEHEA -

N=BEN\F=A=+—B ERT
BERTT ALMEAERE -

EBEBERE B i MNEE 2
15 FEHMBHRRMFEIS -

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B F5#R R P aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008
HE_TENF=A=1T—HILFE

46.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 46. TEMBLARFE
SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company's principal subsidiaries at 31 RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H AQH
March 2008 are as follows: ZTEMBARFEBFAT :

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
Paid up  capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered  the Company®/  capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
NG
DAFRKERT FEEfE
S/ BRRE/ Rx/ &,/ ERITRE
WEARER ki i 2 AfMEX BAEELA BIREA IRRK
% Y%
Captain Shore Limited B.V.I. Us$1 100* 100 Securities trading
ERREAES [E RHEE
Full Champion Financial B.V.. US$3 100* 100 Securities trading
Limited ERREAES IER RHEE
New Team Limited B.V.. Us$1 100* 100 Investment holding
ERREAES [E REAR
Power Rise International B.V.. Us$1 100* 100 Securities trading
Limited EREAES [E RHEE
Prosper City International Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Trading of building
Limited BA 100787 materials and provision
RERRERAF of renovation service
REMHE SR
REEERS
Shanghai Hualong PRC US$11,080,000 51 51 Property development
Construction Co. Ltd. i 11,080,000 T and sales
TBERERARAA NEERRHE
Sun Spread Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
) 10,0008 7T BER
Super Target Limited B.V.. Us$1 100* 100 Investment holding
EREAES [E REAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

47.

BA TSR R B aE

For the year ended 31 March 2008 w4
HE_TZNF=ZA=1+—HLFE

46. T EM BN AFE (&)

Proportion of
nominal value of

issued share Effective
Paid up  capital/registered proportion
Place of share capital/ capital held by of issued
incorporation/ registered  the Company®/  capital held
Name of subsidiary registration capital subsidiaries by the Group Principal activities
AT/ HE
DRAFRERT FEEfE
AR, BRBRE/ Rx /i, BRATRA
WEARER kit B HE-E EAREELA BERLA ITEXH
% %
Unique Gold Investments Ltd ~ Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 Investment holding
&R 10,000/ 7 REAR
ERREFEHEREERAF  PRC RMB10,000,000 100 90  Property development

H AK%10,000,0007T

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results of the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of adopting HKFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures, and the amendments to HKAS 1,
Presentation of financial statements: Capital disclosures,
certain comparative figures have been adjusted to
conform with changes in disclosures in the current year
and to show separately comparative amounts in respect
of items disclosed for the first time in 2007/2008. Further
details of these developments are disclosed in note 2 to
the financial statements.

47.

EE

RAFEFEEHRFREMGMHE -
M8 AR R EBES

FREREEARELIEBRFER
BBREATEARAEBEZEE
FEREEERLEZARBNEA
Al -BEERAHINEMBHBARZE
He<cREBE -

EE BB 7

REMEBY B RELERE7HR Y
BLTA—HREIRBTEGTELRE
R (EET) TR |E 2 25—F XK
Bl BETUBBFCREAFEHR
RE LB TAFE IR =
T/ —EEN\FEEBRBRBEZHE
BEMNBRLERE BFRERCHE
—HHERPEBRRM 2R WE -

g E AR A 2008 F3R
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

B F5 4=
RESULTS E
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=t—HLEE
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“EFNFE —FBEFERF —FERF —_ZTLF | ZEBEENE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$000
TABTT TET FABTT TABTT TExT
Turnover R 183,650 95,364 33273 361,961 655,960
Loss attributable to  ZNA =] A% 4
equity holders A ARG
of the Company &8 (67205) (121,158) (26,438) (22,993) (99,379)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
As at 31 March
W=B=+—8”
2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
“EFNNFE —FBFERF —FERF —_ZTLF | ZEBEENE
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$000
TABTT TET FABTT TABTT TERT
Total assets BEE 691,171 423184 391,979 368,715 | 284,182
Total liabilities B EEEE 296,616 192,141 171,594 69,934 75,567
Net assets BEFE 394,555 231,043 220,385 298,781 208,615
Minority interests DEIR R 103,779 10,955 10,241 - -
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